@ DP WORLD

P&O Annual Report 2015

WEDNESDAY

*L5GoCosU”
LDS

21/09/2016 #8
COMPANIES HOUSE

The Peninsutar and Qnental Steam Navigation Company (P&0} 15 a DP World Company
16 Palace Street, London SW1E 5JQ, England
Incorperated by Royal Charter with lrmited hability Company Number Z73




Company Information

Board of directors

Sultan Bin Sulayem (appainted 26/01/2016)
Jamal Majd Bin Thaniah

Yuvra) Narayan
Ganesh Ra) Jayaraman
Anil Wats

Sarmad Qureshi

Secretary
Mochammad Al Hashimy

Registered Office

The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company

16 Palace Street

London

SW1E 5JQ

Telephone +44 (0)20 7901 4000

Incorporated by Royal Charter with imited liability, company number 273

Auditors

KPMG LLP

15 Canada Square
London, UK

E14 5GL

DP World Limited
PO Box 17000

Jebel Al Port

Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Telephone +971 4 881 1110

www dpworld com




Contents
Group Strategic report
Report of the directors

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report,
strategic report, the director's report and the financia! statements

Report of the independent auditor

Group financial statements

Consolidated income statement

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consohidated statement of financial position
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Company financial statements

Company statement of financial position
Company statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Company financial statements

The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company (P&Q) 1s a DP World Company

16 Palace Street, London SW1E 5JQ, England

Incorporated by Royal Charter with imrted fabiity Company Number Z73

Page
1-5

11
12
13-14
15
16
17 =77

78
79
80 - 103




P&O Annual Report

Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015

The directors present their strategic report on the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

Principal Group activities

The pnncipal actvity of The Peninsular and Onental Steam Navigation Company ("P&07) and of its subsidianes
(referred to as “the Group™ In the year was the operation and development of container terminals and related
logistical operations worldwide (“Ports”) Our am s to enhance the supply chain efficiency of our customers by
effectively handling container, bulk and general cargo across our network

Review of operations and resulits

The results of the Group are set out in detail on pages 11 to 16 and in the accompanying notes The financial
position of the Company 1s set out in detall on page 78 and n the accompanying notes

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators durning the year were as follows

Included within net operating costs are the following items

2015 2014 % Change
Ports — Gross contaner throughput (TEL'000) 29,728 28,979 26
Profit from continuing operations before taxatien (£'m} 1935 1605 206
Profit for the year from continuing operations (£'m) 1373 989 ge
EBITDA (Adjusted) (£'m)* 3406 2880 183
Met Assets (£'m) 3,6603 35772 23
Net debt to equity 22 9% 19 9% -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2154 2328 (7 5)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (544 2) (64 3) 746 3

“Eamings before separately disciosed items interest, tax, depreciation and amorhsation (*Adjusted £BITDA )

Gross throughput (twenty foot equivalent units ("TEU") of 29 7 millon TEUs was 2 6% more than last year mainly
due to stronger performances across Europe and Amencas

Profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2015 was £193 5m up 20 6% from the prior year profit
before taxation of £160 5m Excluding the impact of any separately disclosed items, profit before taxation was
£187 7m compared to a pnor year profit before taxation of £162 0Om The increase in the profit before taxation
was dniven by increase in Asia Pacfic and Indian sub-contnent segment pnmarly due to much stronger
performance of equity accounted investees The Australla and Amencas segment has reported stronger
performance relative to pror period due to acquisiion of port of Prince Rupert Net finance costs have increased
by £9 2m primanly due to interest paid on additional drawdown during the year, which is partially offset by one off
gain on restructunng of loan in Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent segment

Profit for the year was £137 3m up by 38 8% from the pror year profit of £98 9m mainly due to increase in
earnings from equity accounted investees in Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent segment and increase in profit
in Europe and Afrnca segment

Net assets at 31 December 2015 of £3,660 3 million were up 2 3% when compared to £3,577 2 million at
31 December 2014, the movements are detailed n the consolidated statement of changes in equity

Net debt to equity increased to 22 9% at 31 December 2015 from 19 9% at 31 December 2014 Net debt 1s
defined as all interest beanng external habiities less cash and cash equivalents

Net cash inflow from operating activites was 7 5% lower than the previous financial year principally due to
unfavourable movement in working capital, which was partly offsel by increased EBITDA

Cash outflow from investing activites was 746 3% higher than the previous financial year mainly due to
acquisiton of port of Prince Rupert in August 2015 and additional capital expenditure in Lendon Gateway port
and Nhava Sheva India Gateway Port

On 18 August 2015, the Group acquired 100% ownership of Maher Termunal's Fainview Container Terminal
(Fairview) in Prince Rupert (DP World Prince Rupert Inc ), British Columbra, Canada from Deutsche Bank for a
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015
(continued)

total consideration of £288 9 million (cash acquired on acquisiton £1 3 million) This acquisition has resulted in
recognition of goodwill of £73 3m

On 23 September 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 17 5% additional interest in Antwerp Gateway NV for
a consideration of £19 0 mullion, resulting in an increase in the Group’s total holding from 42 5% to 60% This has
not resulted in any change in contrel and ¢ 15 continued to be accounted as equity accounted investee

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 49% of non-controling interest in Southampton
Contaner Terminals Limited for a consideration of £38 8 milion, resulting in a gain of £10 5 milion which has
been recorded in equity, as there has not been any change in control

Principal risks and uncertainties

Dunng 2015, the Group continued to monitor and review the pnncipal business performance nsks that could
matenally affect the Group's business, financial condition and reputation While other nsks exist outside those
hsted, we have made a conscious effort to disclose those of greatest importance to our business The Group's
nsk management process aims to provide reasconable assurance that we understand, monitor and manage the
principal uncertainties A summary of the Group's pnncipal nsks, the nature and management of these nsks are
further descnbed below

Macroeconomic instability

Container handiing correlates to GDP growth of the global economy Market conditions in many of the
geographies where the Group operates can be challenging due to macroeconomic 1ssues, which can potentially
impact volume growth and profitability Measures have been taken to mimimise exposures and mitigate the
impact of any downturn in the macroeconomic environment The Group has a well-diversified global portfolio of
investments across a number of junsdictions, spreading concentration risk due to an even geographical spread of
business activity

Geopolitical

The Group seeks new opportunities and operates across a large number of jurisdictions, resulting in exposure to
a broad spectrum of economic, political and social frameworks Ongoing secunty assessments and continuous
monitoring of geopolitical developments along with engagement with local authonties and joint venture partners,
ensures that the Group 1s well positioned to respond to changes in political environments Comprehensive
policies, procedures and trainings are in place to promote legal and regulatory compliance

Competition

The Group faces significant competition in the container terminal industry for concessions and throughput which
could adversely affect its ability to maintain or increase its market share and profitability The Group's major and
middle-tier customers are expected to continue to form alhances and change their strategy on preferred ports and
hubs which could lead to downward pressure on tanffs and profit margins The Group focuses on high levels of
customer service and develop sustainable, high-value and trusted customer relationships throughout its portfolio
The Group's investment in deep-sea capacity allows 1t to handle ultra-large vessels and offers a compettive
advantage

The utihsation of the Group’s operations s influenced by any available capacity to handle container volumes If
port authonities tender many projects simultaneously and create capacity beyond medium-term demand, this will
lead to overcapacity in that market An increase in capacity can lead to intensified competition between port
operators, resulting in weak pricing power, loss of revenue and low return on investment In many junsdictions
where there are ramp-up nsks associated with new capacity, the Group 15 able to seek terms with the port
authonties to restnct the granting of additional capacity unfil a reasonable level of ramp-up has been achreved

Legal and regulatory

Our Group 15 subject to detalled local, regional and global laws and regulations across different junsdictions
which could impact our operations and increase the cost of comphance Failure to comply with legislation could
lead to substantial financial penalties, disruption to business, personal and corporate habiity and loss of
reputation The Group monitors changes to regulations across its portfolio to ensure that the effect of any
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
changes are minimised and comphance s continually managed Comprehensive policies, procedures and
training are in place to promoete legal and regulatory comphance

Corporate responsibility, safety and the environment

There are Group policies for health, safety, welfare, environment and social responsibiity which are
communicated to all staff Each operating company I1s required to produce its own policies and management
systems to reflect Group policies and best industry practice in its sector of business The Company also
encourages the adoption of similar policies by its significant joint ventures and assoclates

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments

. Ligudity nsk
. Market nsk
. Credit nsk

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measunng and managing nsk Further quanttative disclosures are included
throughout the consohdated financial statements

The Board of Directors, in conjunction with the Board of Directors of DP World Limited, have overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework

The Group's nsk management policies are established to identfy and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set
appropnate nsk imits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to imits The Group, through its traiming
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's approach to managing hquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient cash to
meet its kabiities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incurring unacceptable losses or
nsking damage to the Group's reputation

Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market pnces, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial nstruments  The abjective of market nsk management
1s 1o manage and control market nisk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

The Group buys and sells denvatives and also incurs financial habilities in order to manage market nsks All such
transactions are carried out withun the guidelines set by the Board of Directers in the Group Treasury policy
Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatility in the consolidated
income statement

Currency nsk

The Group has extensive overseas and international business operations and operates in a number of foreign
currencies which gives nse to transactional and translational foreign exchange risk The foreign currencies to
which the Group I1s most exposed are the US Dollar, the Indian Rupee, the Canadian Doliar and the Euro In
general, the Group's profits and stockholders’ funds benefit if these currencies are strong against Sterling

The proportion of the Group's net operating assets denominated in foreign currencies 1S approximately 75 7%
(2014 64 8%) with the result that the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and, in particular
owner's equity, can be affected by currency movements when it 1s retranslated at each year end rate The Group
partially mihigates the effect of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which the
assets are denominated and using cross currency swaps The impact of currency movements on operating profit
1s partally mitigated by interest costs being incurred in foreign currencies
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(continued)

Exchange movements arsing on foreign currency investments are taken directly to equity

A portion of the Group's actmvities generate part of therr revenue and incur some costs outside ther main
functional currency Due to the diverse number of locations in which the Group operates there 15 some natural
hedging that occurs within the Group When t 1s considered that currency volatiity could have a matena! impact
on the results of an operatron, hedging using forward foreign currency contracts 1s undertaken to reduce the
short-term effect of currency movements

When the Group’s businesses enter into capital expenditure or lease commitments in currencies other than ther
man functional currency, these commitments are hedged, in most instances, using forward contracts and
currency swaps In order to fix the cost when converted to the funchional currency The Group classifies its forward
exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value

As well as the direct effect on cash flows, exchange rates also affect the Group's businesses because of their
overall economic influence In pariicular, exchange rates affect international trade flows which impact on the
activities of the Group

Interest rate rnisk
The Group's exposure tc the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates pnmanly to the Group's long-term
debt obhgations with a fixedfloating interest rate and bank deposits

Approximately £130 7 milion (2014 £161 2 mellion) of the Group’s interest beanng leans and borrowings carry
interest at floating rates The Group's policy I1s to manage its interest cost by entenng into interest rate swap
agreements 1n which the Group agrees to exchange, at specffied intervals, the difference between fixed and
vanable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount These swaps
are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations

At 31 December 2015, after taking into account the effect of inlerest rate swaps, approximately 88 2% (2014 82%) of

the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest

Credit risk
Credit nsk 1s the risk of financiai loss to the Group If a customer fails to meet ts contractual obltgations, which
anses pnncipally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment secunties

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties It 1s the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade oncredit terms are subject to credt venfication procedures and are required to submit financial
guarantees based on therr creditworthiness In addition, recewable balances are monitored on an on-going
basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts 1s not significant

The Greoup establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estmate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other recewvables The man components of this allowance are a specific loss component that refates to
individually significant exposures and a collective loss component established for Groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been mcurred but not yet identfied The collective loss allowance 1s determined
based on histonical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets

Other financial assets

Credit nsk ansing from other financial assets of the Group comprises cash and cash equivalents and certain
denvative instruments The Group's exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments

The Group limits its credit nsks with regard to bank deposits by dealing only with reputable banks with a mmimum
credit rating of A-

Financial guarantees
The Group’s policy 1s to consider the prowision of a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidianes whete there
1s a commercial rationale to do so Guarantees may also be provided to Joint ventures and associates in very
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(continued)

imited circumstances and always only for the Group's share of the obligation The provision of guarantees
always requires the approval of management

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to mainian mvestor, creditor and markel confidence
and to sustain future development of the business The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital
employed (ROCE), which the Group defines as earnings before interest and tax and before separately disclosed
stems (SDI), as a percentage of total assets less current ltabilites Return on capial employed 1s 4 1% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 as compare to 3.8% for the year ended 31 December 2014

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management 1s to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ralios in order to support its business and maxinuze shareholder value The Board seeks to
maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with tugher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and secunly afforded by a sound capital position

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidianes are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

By order of the Board

Mohammad Al Hashimy

Liaipgid\

Secretary
27 June 2016
Company Number 273
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Report of the directors

The directors present their repart and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015

Directors
The directors of the Company who held office dunng the year and to the date of this report were as follows

Sultan Bin Sulayem (appointed 26 January 2016)
Jamal Majid Bin Thaniah

Mohammed Sharaf (resigned on 26 January 2016}
Yuvra) Narayan

Ganesh Ra| Jayaraman

Anid Watts

Sarmad Qureshi

Dividends

The directors approved the payment of an intenm dividend of £1,000m on 31% March 2018, the Directors did not
recommend the payment of a dvidend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £nil)

Employees

The Company 1s committed to keeping employees throughout the Group informed of performance, development
and progress through its established system of bnefings by management, and widely distnbuted news and
information bulletins

There 1s a European Works Council, known as the European Council, the purpose of which 1s to inform and
consult with employee representatives on transnational 1ssues Members are elected in the UK and Ireland and
either elected or appointed, in accordance with national laws, in other countnies The Council meets twice a year

The Company’s aim 1s to meet the objectives of the code of good practice on the employment of disabled people
Full and fair consideration 1s given to disabled applicants for employment and training, and career development 1s
encouraged on the basis of aptitude and abiities It remains Company policy to retain employees who become
disabled whilst In its service and to provide specialised training where appropriate

Employees are able to share in the Group's results through performance related bonus schemes which are
widely applied in the Group

Going concern

The Group’s business achvites, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in this Report in additton, note 6 to the consolidated financial statement sets out the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing the Group's financial nsk, including capital management, and
note 29 provides details of the Group's exposure to credit nsk, iquidity nsk and interest rate rnsk ansing from
financial instruments

The Group has within current receivables an amount of £2,602 8 million (2014 £2,601 1 million) due from its
intermediate parent companies and fellow subsidianes and believe these to be recoverable On this basis, the
Directors believe that the Group has the ability to continue trading and to meet future commitments

The board of directors remain satisfied with the Group’s funding and hquidity position At 31 December 2015, the
Group had net debt of £837 9 mullion (2014 £712 0 mullion) and £244 3 million (2014 £389 6 million) of undrawn
committed borrowing faciities The Group generated net cash of £2154 miliion (2014 £232 8 million) from
operating activities and its interest cover for the year 1s 8 times (2014 11 times) {calculated using adjusted
EBITDA to net interest expense before separately disclosed tems)

Based on the above and having made enquines, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts
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Report of the directors (continued)

Directors Indemnity Insurance
All directors are entitled to indemnification from the Company to the extent permitted by law against claims and
legal expenses incurred in the course of thewr duties

Such qualifying third party indemnity insurance is provided and remains in force as at the date of approving the
directors' report

Disclosure of information to the auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and each Director has
taken all the steps thal he or she ought to have taken as a diector to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Acl 2008, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue n office

By order of the Board
Mohammad Al Hashimy

LA

Secretary
27June 2016
Company Number 273
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Report, Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report, strategic report, the directors’ report and the Group
and parent company financial statements, i accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
year Under that law they have elected {o prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (FFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that
penod

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make jJudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» for the Group statements, state whether they have been prepared m accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU,

« for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Parent Company financial
statements, and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it I1s :nappropnate to presume that the
Group and the Parent Company wilil continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Parent Company’s transaction and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financral statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanties
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Peninsular and
Oriental Steam Navigation Company

We have audited the financial statements of The Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawvigation Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 11 to 103 The financial reporting framework that has been
apphied n the preparation of the Group financial statements s applicable law and intermnatonal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the parent company financia! statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclostre Framework

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilty to anyone other than the company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the directors’ Responsibilites Statement set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and fair
view Qur responsibiity 1S to audit, and express an opmion on, the financial statements in accordance with
apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and freland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descnption of the scepe of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Finanaial Reporting Council's
website at www fre org uk/auditscopeukpnvate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opiman

+ the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU,

+ the Parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice;

» the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given m the Strategic Report and the diectors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowng matters where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to report
to you if, 1n our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for our audit
have not been receved from branches not wisited by us, or

» the Parent Company financial statements to be audited are not In agresment with the accounting records
and returns, or

= cerain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

S Oubead

Sameena Arshad (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5GL
27 June 2016
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

P&O Annual Report

£ milion

Year ended 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 December 2014

Note Before  Separately Total Befora  Separately Total
separately disclosed separately disclosed
disclosed tems d:sclosed tems
items uems
Group revenue 7 8836 49 2 9328 805 8 318 8376
Cost of sales (587 6) {49 2) (636 8) (548 2) (31 8) (578 0)

Gross profit 296 0 ] 296 0 250 6 ] 2596

Other operating income 34 ) 34 60 ) 60
Administrative costs {148 4} (04) (148 8) (144 9} - (144 9)
Earnings from equity accounted 7 802 80 2 677 - 677
investees -

Group operating profit 2312 {0 4) 2308 188 4 - 188 4
Loss on sale and termination of 9 - (02) (0 2) - - -
business

Profit before finance expense 2312 {0 6) 2306 188 4 - 1884
Finance income 10 47 4 64 538 431 10 441
Finance expense 10 {90 9) - (90 9) (69 5) {2 5) (72 0}

Net finance expense {43 5) 64 (37 1) (26 4) {15) (27 9)

Profit before taxation 1877 58 1935 1620 (15) 1605
Income tax expense 1 (56 2) (56 2) (61 6) (61 6)

Profit for the year 7 13156 58 1373 100 4 (15 989

Attnbutable to
Cwners of the company 1181 767
Non-controlhing interests 192 222

11
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

£ miflron
Note 2015 2014
Profit for the year 1373 g8 9
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated income
statement
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 54 {46 9)
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations {6 4) 279
Share of other comprehensive income of equnty accounted investees 06 (14
Deferred tax on other comprehensive income (3 0} 97
Items that will never be reclassified to consolidated income
statement
Re-measurements of post-employment benefit cbhgations 24 {3 8} (42 4)
Related tax (4] 19
Total other comprehensive income for the year (79 {512)
“Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 129 4 477
Attributable to
Ownaers of the company 1130 281
Non-controlling interests 164 196
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015

£ millson
Note 2018 2014
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 6418 2671
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,814 9 1,737 1
Investments in equity accounted investees 14 4455 3598
Other investments 17 293 207
Trade and other receivables 16 153 179
Loans to group undertakings 16 173 224
Deferred tax assets 15 01 84
2,964 2 2,442 4
Current assets
Inventones 171 169
Trade and other receivables 16 1810 157 9
Tax recoverable 16 6 14 4
Loans to group undertakings 16 2,6028 2,6011
Cash and cash equivalents 18 269 4 2492
3,086 9 30395
“Total assets 6,061 1 54819
Non-current habilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19 1,0731 860 9
Trade and other payables 20 738 813
Loan from group undertakings 20 2918 261
Deferred tax liabilities 15 3867 390
Employee benefits 24 1221 1352
Provisions 07 07
1,948 0 1,423 2
Current habilibies
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19 342 1003
Trade and other payables 20 2524 2360
Income tax habilittes 811 872
Loan from group undertakings 20 518 350
Employee benefits 24 68 85
Provisions 166 165
4428 4815
Total llabihities 2,390 8 1,904 7
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Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
as at 31 December 2015

£ mition

Nota 111 2014

Net assets 3,660.3 3,677.2
Equily

Issued capital 22 8432 843 2

Share premium 22 8164 8154

Other reserves 22 2961 2858

Retained earnings 1,6755 1,652 3

3,630 2 3,506 7

Non-controlling interasts 2 0.1 705

Total equily 3,660.3 3,577 2

Total equity and liabilitles 6,051.1 5,481.9

he accounts were approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 27 June 2016 by
=

Sarmad Qureshi

Director

The Peninsular and Onental Steam Navigation Company — Company Number Z73

14




ST

£ 099'¢ 1 Of zogg'e §5.9') S 0Ll (6 09) 5 98l P58 T EV8 §10Z 10qWadsa LE IV
(9 2) (92) - - - - - - - £152491U1 Bulj|oNUO3-LoU YYIM SUONOBSUEI) [BI0L
(9 (94 - - - - - - - SpUDPIAIC-
- - - - - - - - - SUOIOESUEL} JBYID-
s15018Ju1 BuljjosuU02-ucU Y)m suonIesues |
|onuod
(2 8¢} (Z 6%} S 0L S0 - - - - - ut 33uRyd INOGHYM s1sa133u Surjjorjuos-uot jo uonisinbay
- - - - - - - - - Apnba uy Apsalip pepiodal SISUMO UM SUOHDESURI]
¥ 621 ¥ 9l 0ELL LZhL - " {1 1) - - awodu sAIsusy3.dwod B10.L
{6 £} (82) (v s} ) v (Tl - - XE) BLIOOUI JO 12U 'SWOILI SAISUSLBICWOD 19Y10 [BI0L
£ 181 Z 6k L 8L L 8L - - - - - Ieak ay) Joj oid
Jedk ay) 10} awoaul aaisuayasdurod jejoL
Z 118't S0l 1906t £ 2661 S 0ll (€ 29) 9 81 rsie Zepe 510z Alenuer | 1y
ZLIS'E S 0L 2905'¢ €585t S 0L (€ Z9) 948l vGig ZEF8 ¥10Z 1quiada) Lt iy
(F1L) i) - - - - - - - s1sa1a1U1 BUl||CIJU03-UOU YJIM SUOIDBSUEI] [8)0]
(asy) {ast) - - - - - - - SpuapIng-
[44 (A4 - - - - - - - SUOIDESUE)) JBYlO-
s]sas8iUl BUKONUOI-UCU Y)im SUCIDBSUR) |
- - - - - - - - - Aynba ui Aoaip papiosal SIAUMO UMM SUOIDBSUEL ]
Liv 96l L 82 Z 6¢ - {c 8E) Z.lZ - - awWooul aaisuayaidwod (8101
{z 19) {92) {9 8v) (5 L8) - 3:43] Tz - - XE) SLUCOUI JO JU “ILI0DLI SAISUBLBICWITD JBYI0 101
696 cZL 194 L9 - - - - - Jeak ay) 10} 1oid
Jeak ay) 1oy auwlodul ansusyaldwod [ejeL
6 0¥S'E £29 g 8L’ L €161 S04l (0 va) ? Q91 yGle ZEVR 10z Aenuer | 1e se adueleq
1sala|
fnbe Buijjonuos sBuiwsea antesal aAlasal aalasal wnjwaid |eyden
|el01 -uoN ejoL pouIe}ay 1BYIO BuiBpay uoijejsuel]  aJeys aleysg
oI 3

yoday [pnuuy 0®d

¢L0Z Joquiadag LS papus 1eak ay} io4

Ajinba ul sabueys jo Juawale}s pajepi|josuod




Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015

P&O Annual Report

Note 2018 2014
Operating activities
Profit after taxation 1373 989
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before taxation to net cash provided by operating activities
Share of profits of equity accounted investees 14 {80 2} 67 7)
Loss on sale of infangibles and property, plant and equipment o7 o1
Loss on sale and termination of business 9 02 -
Impairment loss 9 04 -
Net finance expense 10 371 279
Taxation expense " 56 2 616
Depreciation and amortisation charges 109 4 996
Gross cash ftows from operations 2611 2204
Movement in working capital
Change in inventories 03 (25)
Change in trade and other recevables 535 190
Change in trade and other payables {5 8) 65 2
Change in provisions (17 7) 57)
Income taxes paid (76 0) (63 6)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2154 2328
Investing activities
Capital expenditure (227 8) {146 1)
Investment in equity accounted investees (19 0) {11)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 109 o7
Dividends receved from joint ventures and asscciates 14 239 815
Net loans given to joint ventures and associates (171 -
Interest receved 112 86
Acguisition of non-controlling nterest without change of control (387) -
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 28 (287 6) 79
Net cash used in investing actvities {544 2) (64 3)
Financing activities
Drawdown from long-term financmg 1738 157 8
Repayments of long-term financing (36 5) {70 7)
Net decrease/ (tncrease) in lpan with group undertakings 2859 (110 3)
Net interest paid (559) (46 4)
Dwidends paid to Non-controlling interest (7 6) {1586)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3597 {85 2)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 309 833
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18 2492 165 5
Currency transtation differences relating to cash and cash equivalents (107) 04
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2694 2492
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Reporting entity

The Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawigation Company {the “Company”) 1s a company incorporated and domiciled
in the United Kingdom The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015
compnse the Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the “Group” and indwvidually referred to as “Group
entiies”) and the Group's interests In associates and jointly controlled entites The parent company financial
statements present information about the company as a separate entity and not as a Group

2 Basis of preparation
{a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (“IFRS?) The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 78 to 103

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 27 June 2016
(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for denvative
financial instruments which are measured at fair value

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note 5
{c) Funding and hquidity

The Group's business activities, together with factors hkely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set cut in this Report In addition, note 6 to the consolidated financial statement sets cut the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managmg the Group’s financial risk, including capital management, and
note 29 provides details of the Group's exposure to credit risk, hquidity nsk and interest rate nsk ansing from
financial instruments

The Group has within current recevables an amount of £2,602 8 million (2014 £2,601 1 milkon) due from its
intermediate parent companies and fellow subsidianes and beleve these to be recoverable On this basis, the
Directors believe that the Group has the ability to continue trading and to meet future commitments

The Board of Directors remain satisfied with the Group's funding and iquidity position At 31 December 2013, the
Group had net debt of £837 9 miflion (2014 £712 0 million} and £244 3 milion (2014 £389 6 million) of undrawn
committed borrowing faciities The Group's credit facility covenants are currently well within the covenant imits
The Group generated net cash of £215 4 million (2014 £232 8 million) from operating activities and its interest
cover for the year 1s 8 times (2014 11 times) (calculated using adjusted EBITDA to net interest expense before
separately disclosed items)

Based on the above and having made enquines, the Cirectors consider that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concem basis in prepanng the accounts

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company Is stering Each entily in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included 1n the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in stering (“£7), which in the opinion of management is the
most appropnate presentation currency of the company in view of the global presence of the Group All financial
information presented in £ are rounded to the nearest 0 1 milion
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(e) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consoldated financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilibes, income and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis Rewvistons to accounting estimates are
recognised in the penod in which the estimate 1s revised and in any future penods affected

Information about cntical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounis recogrised in the consolidated financial statements are as follows

{1 Provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets

The Group Is subject to income taxes in numerous junsdictions Sigruficant judgement 1s required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultmate tax
determination 1s uncertain dunng the ordinary course of business The Group recognises habilities for anticipated tax
clams based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s
different from the amounts that were initrally recorded, such differences will impact the mcome tax and deferred tax
provisions In the penod in which such determination 1s made

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be
availlable against which the losses can be utiised Significant management judgement 1s required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies

(i) Fair value of denivatives and financial instruments

Where the farr value of financial assets and financial habilites recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
posiion cannot be denved from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow model The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this 1s not feasible, a degree of judgement s required In establishing far values The judgements include
consideration of inputs such as market nsk, credit nsk and volatility

(i) Contingent habilities
There are vanous factors that could result in a contingent hability being disclosed if the probability of any outflow In

setilement 1s not remote The assessment of the outcome and financial effect 1s based upon management's best
knowledge and judgement of current facts as at the reporting date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
{e) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(v} Useful ife of property, plant and equipment and port concession nghts with finite life

The useful Iife of property, plant and equipment and port concession nghts with finite life 1s determined by the
Group's management based on ther estimate of the penod over which an asset or port concession nght 15
expected to be available for use by the Group This estmate I1s reviewed and adjusted If appropnate at each
financial year end This may result in a change in the useful economic lves and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense in future penods

{v) impairment testing of goodwill and port concession nghts

The Group determines whether goadwill and port concession nights with indefinite ife are impaired, at least on an
annual basis This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill 1s
allocated or in which the port concession nights with indefinte life exist Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows

(vi) Impairment of accounts receivable

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable 1s made when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable For significant amounts, this estmation 15 performed on an individual basis Amounts which are not
indnadually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
length of tme past due, based on historical recovery rates Any difference between the amounts actually collected in
future penods and the amounts expected, will be recogmsed n the consolidated income statement

{vii) Pension and post-employment benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits 1s determined using actuanal
valuations The actuanal valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on
assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases Due to the long-term nature of these
plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

(vin)  Busmess combinations

In accounting for business combinations, judgement 1s required n identifying whether an identifiable intangible
asset 1s to be recorded separately from goodwill Additionally, esimating the acquisihion date fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed involves management judgment These measurements are
based on information available at the acquisition date and are based on expectations and assumptions that have
been deemed reasonable by the management Changes in these judgements, estimates and assumptions can
matenally affect the results of operations

{1x) Non-consolidation of entities in which the Group holds more than 50% shareholding

Antwerp Gateway N V and Asian Terminals Inc are equity accounted investees of the Group even though the
Group has majonty in ownership and voting nghts The Directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has the ability to direct the relevant activities of this entity unilaterally After assessment, the Directors
concluded that the underlying joint venture agreement with the other shareholder does not provide significant
control to the Group and therefore investment in these entities are equity accounted and not consolidated
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out 1n Note 4 to all penods presented in these
consolidated financial statements

4 Significant accounting polictes

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in the year presented i these consolidated
financial statements and have been apphed consistently by the Group entities

(a) Basis of consolidation
(i} Business combinations

Business combinations (Including business combinations under commeon control) are accounted for using the
acquistion method as at the acquisition date —t e when control 1s transferred to the Group In assessing control,
the Group takes mto consideration potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as

the fair value of the consideration transferred, pius
the recogmised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, plus

. if the business combination 1s achieved in stages, the far value of the pre-existng equity interest in the
acqurree, less
. the net recognised amount (generally far value) of the identifiable assets (including previously

unrecognised port concession nghts) acquired and habilities (including contingent habiities and excluding
future restructunng) assumed

In an acquisition, if the purchase price is lower than the far value of the assets acquired, the resulting gain will be
recognised immedrately in the statement of consolidated statement of profit or loss

In case of business combinations under common control, if the purchase price 1s lower than the fair value of the
assets acquired, the resulting gain will be recognised directly In equity

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related o the settlement of pre-existing relationships

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity secunties, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable 1s measured at far value at the acquisihon date If the contingent
consideration 1s classified as equity, then it 1s not re-measured and settlement s accounted for within equity
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the far value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss

(1} Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group The Group controls an entity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts
to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity The financial statements of subsidianies are included in the consolidated financial statements from

the date that control commences until the date thai control ceases The accounting policies of subsidianes have
been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group

(ri) Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries without loss of control

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners n their capacity as owners and therefore ne goodwill 1s recognised as a result of such
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(rit) Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries without loss of control (continued)

transactions The difference between the farr value of any consideration paid and relevant share acquired in the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 1s recorded in equity under retained earnings

{iv) Disposal of subsidiaries (loss of control)

On the loss of control, the Group derecogmises the assets and labilities of a subsidiary, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary Any surplus or defict ansing on the loss of
control 1s recogrised in the consohdated statement of profit or loss If the Group retains any interest in the previous
subsidiary, then such interest 1s re-measured at far value at the date that control i1 lost Subsequently, that
retained interest 1s accounted for as an equity-accounted wnvestee or as an available-for-sale financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained

(v} Non-controlling interests

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controling interests at their proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, which 1s generally at farr value

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even
if doing so, causes the non-controlling tnterests to have a debit balance

(vi) Investments in associates and joint ventures (equity-accounted investees)

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group has significant influence Significant influence 1s the power to
partictpate n the financial and cperating policy decisions of the investee, but 1s not control or joint control over
those policies

A joint venture 1s a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
nghts to the net assets of the joint venture Joint contro! i1s the contractually agreed sharnng of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties shanng control

Investment in equity-accounted Investees are accounted for using the equity method and are initialty recorded at
cost including transaction costs The Group's nvestment includes goodwill identfied on acquisition, farr value
adjustments net of any accumulated impairment losses The consolidated financial statements include the Group's
share of the income and expenses of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies
wath those of the Group, from the date that signficant influence or joint control commences until the date that
significant influence or joint control ceases

When the Group's share of losses exceeds Iis interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of that
interest (iIncluding any long-term investments) 1s reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses 1s discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee If the equity-
accounted investees subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising ts share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised

The financial stalements of the equity-accounted investees are prepared for the same reporting penod as the
Group The fransactions between the Group and its equity-accounted investees are made at normal market prices

At each reporting dale, the Group determines whether there 1s any objective evidence that the investment in the
equity-accounted investees are impaired If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impaiment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the equity-accounted investees and its carrying value and
recognises the same in the consolidated income statement

Upon loss of jont control or significant influence, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
s far value The difference between the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investees upon loss of joint
control or significant influence and the farr value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal I1s
recognised as profit or loss in the consolidated income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{wii) Transactions elimunated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses ansing from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated n preparng the consolidated financial statements Unrealised gains anising from the
transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the tnvesiment to the extent of the Group's
mterest in the investee Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there 1s no evidence of impairment

(b} Foreign currency

(} Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in £, which 1s the Group's presentation currency items
included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary environment in which it operates (functional currency)

(11} Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions

Monetary tems denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date and exchange differences, If any, are recognised In the income
statement

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at histoncal cost are translated to the functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction and is hot retranslated at a later date Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transtated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the date when the farr value was determined

Foreign currency differences ansing on retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for differences ansing on the retranslation of avalable-for-sale equity
instruments, of a financial kability designated as a hedge of the net investment In a foreign operation, or
qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recogrnised directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income {refer to note 4(b){v))

{in) Foreign operations

The results and financial position of all the Group entiies (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy), that have funchonal currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows

(a) The assets and habilities of foreign operattons, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on
acquisition, are translated to Sterling at exchange rates at the reporting date
{b) The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Sterling at average exchange rates

{unless this average is not a reasonable approxamation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions)

(c) All resulting foreign exchange differences amsing on franslation are recogmised in the other
comprehensive income and presented m the translation reserve in equity However, if the foreign
operation i1s not a wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportion of the translation difference 1s
allocated to non-controlling interests
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(i) Foreign operations (continued)

When a foreign operation 1s disposed such that control, significant infuence or joint control Is lost, the cumulative
amount 1n the translation reserve related to that foreign operation 1s reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as part of the gamn or loss on disposal When the Group disposes of only part of its interest In a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proporton of the cumulative amount
s reattnibuted to non- controlling Interests When the Group disposes of only part of its mvestment in an associate
or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaning significant influence or jont control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount 1s reclassified to the consolidated slatement of profit or loss

Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing from a monetary item recewvable from or payable to a foreign operation,
the settlement of which s neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a net
invesiment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented n the
translation reserve in equity

(v} Hedge of a net investment inr a foreign operation

Foreign currency differences ansing on the retranslation of a financial fiability designated as a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, to
the extent that the hedge 1s effective To the extent that the hedge 1s neffective, such differences are recognised In
the consolidated statement of profit or loss When the hedged net investment 1s disposed of, the associated
cumulative amount in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 1s transferred to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of the gamn or loss on disposal

{c) Financial instruments
( Non-denvative financial assets

Initial recogmition and measurement

The Group classifies non-denvatve financial assets into the following categones held to matunty financial assets,
loans and recewvables and financial assets at far value through profit or loss The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recogmtion

All non-denvative financial assets are recogrused wutially at fair value, plus, any directly attnbutable transaction
costs

The Group inthially recognises loans and recevables and deposits on the date that they onginated All other
financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised inthally on the trade
date, which 1s the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group's non-denvative financial assets compnse debt secunties held to matunty, financial assets at fair value
thraugh profit and loss, trade and other recewvables, due from related paries and cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial instruments {continued)
) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of non-derivative financial assets depends on therr classification as follows
Held to maturity financial assets

If the Group has a positive intent and ability to hold debt secunties to matunty, then these are classified as held-to-
matunty Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-matunty financial assets are measured at amorhised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate The
effective interest rate amortisation I1s included n finance cost In the consolidated income statement Gains and
losses are also recognised in the consoldated income statement when these financial assets are de-recognised

Loans and receivables

Loans and recewables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate methed, less any impairment losses Loans and receivables compnse bank balances and cash, due
from related parties and, trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial position compnse cash in hand, bank balances
and deposits

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and
cash as defined above and cash classified as held for sale, net of bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts form an integra)
part of the Group's cash management and 1s included as a component of cash and cash equvalents for the
purpose of the consclidated statement of cash flows

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset 1s classified as at fair value through profit or loss if 1t 1s classified as held for trading or I1s
designated as such on inihial recognition These assets are measured at far value and changes therein, including
any interest or dvidend income, are recognised in consoldated statement of profit or loss Financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss compnse investment in an equity instrument of unlisted entity

Investment in equity instrument that do not have a quoted market pnce in an active market and whose farr value
cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost

De-recogmtion of non-denvative financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the nghts to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred Any interest in transferred
financial assets that i1s created or retained by the Group 1s recognised as a separate asset or hab:lity

() Non -denvative financial habiities

Irnitral recognition and measurement

The Group’s non-denvative financial habiliies consist of loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, amounts due to
related parties, and trade and other payables The Group determines the classification of tts financial liabilities at

inthal recognitton All non-denvative financial habiliies are recogmised initially at fair value less any directly
attnbutable transaction costs
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(c} Financial instruments {continued)
(i) Non -denvative financial liabiities (continued)

Inttial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group inially recognises debt secunties 1ssued and subordinated hiabilties on the date they onginated All
other financial habilities (iIncluding assets designated at farr value through profit or loss) are recognised nitialty
on the trade date, which 1s the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recogrised as transaction costs to the extent there Is
evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 15 capitalised as a
prepayment for hquidity services and amortised over the penod of the facility to which it relates

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of non-denvative financial habiities depends on therr classification as follows

Subsequent to initial recognitron, these financial labiites are measured at amortised cost using effective
nterest rate method Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an mtegral parl of the effective interest rate The effective interest rate amortisation 1s
included in finance costs in the consolidated income statement

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial habiity or a part of it shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the onginal financial habihty and the recognition of a new financial lrability Any gain or loss on
extinguishment 1s recognised In the consolidated income statement If discounted present value of the cash
flows (including any fees paid) under a new ferm arrangement 1s at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaiming cash flows of the oniginal tiability, this 1s accounted for as an extinguishment of
the old habiity and the recogriion of a new liabiity Furthermore, gualtative assessment to assess
extinguishment 1s also performed Some of the factors considered in performing a qualtative assessment
include change n interest basis, extension of debt tenure, change n collateral arrangements and change In
currency of lending

De-recognttion of non-derivative financial habilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when tts contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired
(1) Derivative financial mstruments

The Group holds denvative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to
hedge 1ts foreign currency and interest rate nsk exposures On initial designation of the denvatives as the hedging
nstrument, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item,
including the risk management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge transaction and hedged nsk
together with the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relatonship The Group
makes an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, of whether
the hedging instruments are expected to be “highly effective” in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash
flows of the respective hedged items attnbutable to the hedged nsk and whether the actual results of each hedge
are within the acceptable range

Denvatives are recognised initally at far value and attnbutable transaction costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when mcurred Denvatives are camed as financial assets when the farr value 1s
positive and as financial habiities when the farr value i1s negative

Denvative instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships are classified as
financial labiktes or assets at far value through profit or loss
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(¢) Financial instruments (continued)
(1) Dernvative financial instruments (continued}

Subsequent to initial recognition, denvatives are measured at farr value, and changes theremn are accounted for as
descnbed below

Cash flow hedges

When a denvative 1s designated as the hedging nstrument in a hedge of the vanability in cash flows attnbutable to
a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or habiity or a hughly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency nsk in an unrecognised firm commitment that could affect the consolidated income statement,
then such hedges are classified as cash flow hedges

Changes in the far value of the denvative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recogrused
directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge 1s effective and
presented in the hedging reserve in equity Any ineffective portion of changes in the farr value of the denvative 1s
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement

When the hedged item 1s a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it 1s recognised |n other cases, the
amount recognised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 1$ transferred to the consolidated
income statement in the same penod that the hedged item affects the consolidated ncome statement If the
hedging instrument no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised,
or the designation 15 revoked, then hedge accounting 1s discontinued prospectively The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income remains there until the forecast
transaction or firm commitment occurs If the forecast transaction or firm commitment 1s no longer expected to
oceur, then the balance in equity Is reclassified to income statement

(iv) Cffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial iabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial posiion when, and only when, the Group has a !egal nght to offset the amounts and intends either to
set off on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the kability smultaneously

(d) Property, plant and equipment

m Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumutated depreciation and impairment
losses (refer to note 4(1))

Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attrbutable to the acquisiion of the asset The cost of a self-
constructed asset includes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs directly attnbutable to
bninging the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismanthing and removing the items
and restonng the site on which they are located
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{d) Property, plant and equipment {continued)
(i) Recognition and measurement {continued)

Purchased software that 1s integral to the functionality of the related equipment s capitalised as part of that
equipment

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful hives, they are depreciated as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparnng the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and recognised within ‘other
income’ In the consolidated income statement

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress 1s measured at cost less impairment losses and not depreciated until such time the
assets are ready for intended use and transferred to the respective category under property, plant and
eguipment

Dredging

Dredging expenditure 1s categonsed into capital dredging and major maintenance dredging Capttal dredging 1s
expenditure which includes creation of a new harbour, deepening or extension of the channel berths or
waterways n order to allow access to larger ships which will result in future economic benefits for the Group
This expenditure is captalised and amortised over the expected penod of the relevant concession agreement
Terminals, where the Group owns the land, dredging expenditure 1s capitalised and amortised over its useful
hfe

Major maintenance dredging s expenditure incurred to restore the channel to its previous condition and depth

On an average, the Group incurs such expenditure every 10 years At the completion of maintenance dredging,
the channel has an average service potential of 10 years Any unamortised expense 1S wntten-off on the
commencement of any new dredging activities Maintenance dredging 1s regarded as a separate component of
the asset and 1s capitalised and amortised evenly over 10 years

() Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s recognised in the carrying amount of
the em if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured reliably The carrying amounts of the replaced parts are derecognised The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recegnised in the consolidated income statement as
incurred

(1)) Depreciation

Land and capital work in progress 1s not depreciated Deprecation on other assets Is recognised tn the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the estmated useful lives of each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment and 1s based on cost less residual value

The estimated useful hives of assets are as follows

Assets Useful life (years)
Bulldings 5-50
Plant and equipment 3-25
Ships 10-35
Dredging (included in land and buildings) 10-99
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{d) Property, plant and equipment {(continued)

{1ii) Depreciation (continued)

Dredging costs are depreciated on a straight line basis based on the ives of vanous compoenents of dredging

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it 1s reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term No depreciation 1s provided on
freehold land

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporling date and adjusted
prospectively, if required

An asset's carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
1$ greater than its estimated recoverable amount {refer to note 4 (1) (h))

(v) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessanly take a substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substanhally ready for theirr intended use or sale
Borrowing costs may include

(a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as descnbed in 1AS 39,
(b} finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with 1As 17, and

(c) exchange differences ansing from foreign currency horrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurred

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidianies, associates and joint ventures Goodwill represents the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identfiable assets, iabilities and
contingent habiliies of the acquiree  In an acquisitton, If the purchase pnce 15 lower than the far value of the
assets acquired, the resulting gamn will be recognised immediately in the statement of consoldated income
statement

Goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses (refer to note 4(1))

In respect of equity-accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill 1s included in the carrying amount of
the investment and i1s not tested for imparrment separately

{f) Port concession nights

The Group classifies the port concession nghts as intangible assets as the Group bears demand nsk over the
infrastructure assets Substanhally all of the Group's terminal operations are conducted pursuant to long-term
operating concessions or leases entered into with the owner of a relevant port for terms generally between 25 and
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

50 years (excluding the port concession nghts relatng to associates and joint ventures) The Group commonly
starts negohations regarding renewal of concession agreements with approximately 5-10 years remamning on the
term and often obtans renewals or extensions on the concession agreements in advance of their expiration In
return for a commitment to make certain capital expenditures in respect of the subject terminal In addition, such
negotiations may result in the re-basing of rental charges to reflect prevailing market rates However, based on the
Group's expenence, incumbent operators are typically granted renewal often because it can be costly for a port
owner to switch operators, both administratively and due to interruptions to port operations and reduced
productivity associated with such transactions Port concession nghts consist of

(1) Port concession rights arising on business combinations

The cost of port concession nghts acquired n a business combination is the far value as at the date of
acqusition Other port concession nights acquired separately are measured on imitial recognition at cost

Following inthial recognihon, port concession rights are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (refer to note 4()) Internally generated pert concession nghts, excluding
capialised development costs, are recognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred The useful
lives of port concession rights are assessed to be either finite or indefinite

Port concession nghts with fimite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an indication that the port concession nghts may be impared Port
concession nghts with indefinite lives (anising where freehold nghts are granted) are not amortised and are
tested for impairment at least on an annual basis

The amortisation penod and amortisation method for port concession nghts with finte useful lives are reviewed
at least at each financial year end Changes in the expected useful ife or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied n the assets are accounted for by changing the amortisation penod or
method, as appropnate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates The amortisation expenses on port
concession nghts with finite useful ives are recognised n the consolidated income statement on a straight ine
basis in the expense category consistent with the function of port concession nghts

Port concession nghts with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either indmidually or at the
cash-generating unit level Such port concession nghts are not amortised The usefu! Iife of port concession
nghts with an indefinite life 1s reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite Iife assessment continues to
be supportable If not, the change n the useful ife assessment from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective
basis

{n) Port concession rights arising from Service Concession Arrangements (IFRIC 12}

The Group recognises pert concession nghts ansing from a service concession arrangement, in which the
grantor controls or regulates the services provided and the prices charged, and alsa controls any significant
residual interest in the infrastructure such as property, plant and equipment, If the infrastructure 1s existing
infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure 1s constructed or purchased by the Group as part of the service
concession arrangement

Port concession nghts also include certain property, plant and equipment which are reclassidied as intangible
assets in accordance with IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ These assets are amortised based on
the lower of therr useful lives or concession pertod

Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of port concessicn nghts are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income
statemen! when the asset 1s de-recognised

The estimated useful lives for port concession nghts range within a penod of 5 — 50 years (including the
concession nghts relating to associates and jont ventures)
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(g) Inventones

Inventories mainly consist of spare parts and consumables Inventones are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value The cost of inventones 1s based on weighted average method and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring inventortes and bnnging them to their exasting location and conditton Net realisable value
1s the estimated selling pnce in the ordinary course of business, less applicable vanable selling expenses

(h) Leases

The determination of whether an amangement 1s, or contains, a lease 1s based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date The arrangement 1s assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement 1s
dependent on the use of a speafic asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset or assets,
even if that nght 1s not explicitly specified in an amrangement

(7} Group as a lessee

Assets held by the Group under leases in which a sigruficant portion of the nisks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Assets held under operating leases are not recognised
in the Group's consclidated statement of financial position Paymenis made under operating leases are
recogmsed m the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral parl of the total lease expense over the term of the lease

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease On intal
recognition, the leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value
of the minimum lease payments Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased asset 1s accounted for in accordance
with the accounting pelicy apphcable to that asset Mimmum lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduchon of the outstanding hability The finance expense I1s
allocated to each penod dunng the lease term so as to produce a constant pencdic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the hability

Contingent payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the
lease when the lease adjustment is confirned

(1) Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases Imntial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental Income Contingent
rents are recognised as income in the penod in which they are eamed

(i) Leasing and sub-leasing transactions

A senes of leasing and sub-leasing transactions between the Group and third partes which are closely
interrelated, negotiated as a single transaction, and which take place concurrently or in a continuous sequence
are considered linked and accounted for as one transachon when the overall ecocnomic effect cannot be
understood without reference to the senes of transactions as a whole

These leasing and sub-leasing transactions are designed to achieve certain benefits for the third parties in
overseas locations in return for a cash benefit to the Group Such cash benefit 1s accounted in the consohdated
income statement based on its economic substance Under these leasing and sub-leasing transactions, current
and non-current habilities have been decreased by the loan receivable and the placement of deposits

30




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)
(h} Leases {continued)
(v} Leases of land in port concession

Leases of land have not been classified as finance leases as the Group beleves that the substantial nsks and
rewards of ownership of the land have not been transferred The exstence of a significant exposure of the lessor to
performance of the asset through contingent rentals was a basis of concluding that substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership have not passed

()] Imparrment
0] Financial assets
(a) Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and recevables and held to matunty mvestment
secunties at both a specific asset level and collective level All individually significant receivables and held to
matunty investment secunties are assessed for specific impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost 15 calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated mcome statement and reflected in
an allowance account against loans and receivables or held to matunty investments When a subsequent event
causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss 1s reversed through the
consolidated income staterment

{1i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventones and deferred tax assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever there 1s an indication of impairment if any such indication exists then the
asset's recoverahle amount 15 estimated The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 1s the
greater of its value in use and its fairr value less costs to sell In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit A cash-
generating unit 1s the smallest identfiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent
from other assets and groups
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{1 Impairment {continued)
() Non-financial assets (continued}

An tmpairment loss 15 recogmised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount [mpairment losses are recognised in the consoldated income statement
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating urits are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (group of units) on a pro rata basts

For goodwill and port concession nights that have indefirite lives or that are not yet avalable for use,
recoverable amount 1s estimated annually and when crcumstances indicate that carrying value may be
impaired Goodwill acquired in business combination 1s allocated to groups of cash generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination An impairment loss n respect of goodwill 1 not
reversed

In respect of other assets, imparment losses recognised In prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any inchcations that the loss has decreased or no longer exists An impairment loss 1s reversed If there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the
extent that the asset's camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount, which would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisatien, If no impairment loss had been recogrused

() Assets held for sale

Assets (or disposal groups compnsing assets and liablies) which are expected to be recovered pnmanly
through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale Immediately before classification
as held for sale, the assets (or components of a disposal group) are re-measured in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies Thereafter, generally the assets (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell Any impairment loss on a disposal group s first allocated to
goodwill, and then to remaining assets and habiites on a pro rata basis, except that no loss 1s allocated to
inventones, financial assets, deferred tax assets and employee benefit assets which continue to be measured In
accordance with the Group's accounting policies Impairment losses on initial classification as held for saie and
subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised In the consolidated income statement Gains
are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impaimment loss

Port concession nghts and property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distnbution are not
amortised or depreciated In addition, equity accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified
as held for sale

(k) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity Any excess payment receved over par value Is treated as share premium
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{1) Employee benefits
(i) Pension and post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contribution
to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive abhgation to pay further amounts Obhgations for
contrnibutions to defined contnbution plans are recognised as an expense In the income statement during which
the services are rendered by employees

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnbution plan

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for thewr service in the current and
prior periods That benefit 1s discounted to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan assets 1
deducted The calculation i1s performed annually by a qualfied actuary using the projected umit credit method
The discount rate 1s the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have matunty dates
approximating {o the terms of the Group's obligations

When the actuanal calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset 1s mited to the present
value of economic benefits available In the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions n future
contributions to the plan In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, constderation is given to
any mininum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Group An economic benefit i1s available to the
Group if it 1s realisable dunng the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilites

Where the present value of the deficit contnbutions exceeds the IAS 19 deficit an additional hability s
recognised

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability, which comprise of actuanal gains and losses, the return on
plan assets {(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celing (if any, excluding interest) are recognised
directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income The Group detearmines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit lability {asset) for the penod by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual penod to the then-net defined benefit
hability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit habilty (asset) dunng the perod as
result of contributions and benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtailed, the resutting change i benefit that relates
1o past service or the gain or loss on curtaiment 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss The Group
recogmse gains and losses on the setilement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{1 Employee benefits (continued)
{in) Long-term service benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than pension plans, 1s the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for their service n the current and prior penods The
oblgation 1s calculated using the projected unit credit method and 1s discounted to its present value and the far
value of any related assets 15 deducted The discount rate 1s the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated
bonds that have matunty dates approximating to the terms of the Group’s obligations

(i) Short-term service benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 1s provided A lability 1s recogrused for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or construchve obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

(m}) Provisions

Prowisions for environmental restoration, restructunng costs and legal claims are recognised when the group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of
resources wil be required to seftle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estmated Restructuning
provisions comprse lease termination penalties and employee termination payments Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected fo be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks
specific to the habibity The unwinding of the discount 1s recogruised as a finance cost in the conschdated
statement of profit or loss

Provision for an onerous contract i1s recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract The prowvision 1s
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terrinating the contract and the expected net
cost of continuing with the contract

(n) Revenue

Revenue 15 recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment 1s being made Revenue 1s measured at the
farr value of the consideration received or recevable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duty

Revenue mainly consists of containenzed stevedering, other containenzed revenue, non- containenzed
revenue, service concession revenue and lease rentals Non-containenzed revenue mainly includes logistics
and handling of break bulk cargo The following specific recognition crnitena must also be met before revenue 1s
recognised

Rendering of services

Revenue from providing containenzed stevedonng, other containenzed services and non-containenzed services
1s recognised on the delivery and completion of those services
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued}
{n} Revenue (continued)
Service concession arrangements (IFRIC 12}

Revenues relating to construction contracts which are entered into with government authonties for the
construction of the infrastructure necessary for the provision of services are measured at the fair value of the
consideration recesved or receivable Revenue from service concession arrangements Is recogrised based on
the fair value of construction work performed at the reporting date

(o) Finance income and expense

Finance income compnses interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging nstruments that are
recogrised In the consolidated income statement Interest income 1s recognised as it accrues, using the
effective interest method

Finance costs comprises interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, iImpaiment
losses recognised on financial assets and losses on hedging instruments that are recogmsed in the
consolidated income statement

Finance income and expense also include realised and unrealised exchange gamns and losses on monetary
assets and iabilities (refer to note 4(b)(n))

(p) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Income tax expense 15 recognised in the consolidated
income statement except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recogmsed directly in
consohdated statement of other comprehensive iIncome

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countnes where the Group operates and generates taxable
income [t also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Current tax assets and labilities are offset only if certain critena are met

Deferred tax 1s recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilibes for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes
Deferred tax 1s nct recognised for

. the temporary differences ansmng on the nhal recognition of goodwill and the imitial recognition of
assets or habilites n a transaction that 1s not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and

. the temporary differences relating to investments in subsidianes and jointly controlled entites 1o the
extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting penod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
labilites

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be appled to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be availlable against which they can be utlised
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probabte that the related tax benefit will be realized

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset only if certain cntena are met
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{q) Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eamn
revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group's other components All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regulary by the Group's
Board of Directors to assess performance

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include tems directly atinbutable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basts Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets
(pnmanly Company's head office), head office expenses and income tax assets and habilihies

Segment capital expenditure ts the total cost incurred duning the year to acquire property, plant and equipment,
and port concession nghts other than goodwill

(r) Separately disclosed items

The Group presents, as separately disclosed items on the face of the consolidated income statement, those
items of ncome and expense which, because of the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving nise to
them, ment separate presentation to allow users to understand better the elements of financial performance in
the penod, so as to faclitate a companson with prior penods and a better assessment of trends in financial
performance These are matenal amounts and as such warrant separate disclosure, without which information of
the underlying operations of the group would not be clear
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4

(s}

Sigmificant accounting policies {continued)

New standard and interpretation not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretatrons are not effective for annual penods
beginning 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in prepanng these consolidated financial statements
Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out betow The Group does not plan to adopt these
standards early

-*

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010), IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2009)

IFRS 9, published n July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 38 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, including a new expected credit loss modet for calculating impatrment on financial assets, and
general hedge accounting requirements

IFRS 9 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted
The adoption of this standard s not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 1s
recognised It replaces existng revenue recognition guidance, including 1AS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The standard 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier application 1s
permitted The adoption of this standard 1s not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements

IFRS 16 Leases

IASB has introduced a new leases Standard, IFRS 18, which supersedes IAS 17 leases The Group s
required to apply IFRS 16 with effect from 1 January 2019

The new standard requires the lessee to recognise the operating lease commutment on balance sheet The
Group, as a lessee, has substantial operating leases and commitments as disclosed in Note 32 The
standard would require future lease commitments to be recognised as a hability, with a corresponding nght
of use asset This will impact the EBITDA and debt to equity ratios of the Group In addition, depending on
the stage of lease, there would be a different pattern of expense recognition on leases Currently lease
expenses are recognised in cost of sales, however In future the lease expense would be an amortisation
and finance expense
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5 Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determuination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and lhabiihes Far values have been determined for measurement and/ or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or hability

() Property, plant and equipment

The farr value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a busmess combination 1s based on
market values The market value of property 1s the estmated amount for which a property could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion The market
value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings 1s based on the quoted market pnces for similar items

(i) Port concession rights

Port concession nights acquired in a business combination are accounted at their far values The farr value 1s
based on the discounted cash flows expected to be denved from the use and eventual sale of the assets

{m) Investments in debt secunities
The fair values of equity and debt secunties are determined by reference to ther quoted closing bid pnice at the
reporting date The farr value of debt secunties held to maturty 1s determined based on the discounted cash flows

at a market related discount rate The farr value of debt securies held to matunty 15 determined for disclosure
purposes only

{(iv) Trade and other receivables/ payables

The fair value of trade and other recevables and trade and other payables approximates to the carrying values due
to the short term matunty of these instruments

v} Denvatives

The farr value of forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps 1s based on the bank quotes at the
reporting dates Similar contracts are traded in an active market and the quotes reflect the actual transactions in
simiiar mstruments

(v1) Non-denivative financial lrabilities

Fair value for quoted bonds 1s based on therr market pnee (including unpaid interest) as at the reporting date
Other [oans include term loans and finance leases These are largely at vanable interest rates and therefore, the
carrying value normally equates to the fair value

The fair value of bank balances and cash and bank overdrafts approximates to the carmrying value due to the shost
term matunty of these instruments

38




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Financial nsk management
Overview

The Group has exposure o the following nisks from s use of financial instruments

(a) credit nsk
{b) liguidity nsk
{c) market nsk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above nisks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing nsk Further quanttative disclosures are included
throughout these consolidated financial statements Also refer to note 29 for further details

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors, in comunction with the Board of Diwectors of DP World Limited, have overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s nsk management framework

The Group's nsk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to
set appropnate nsk hmits and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to imits The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, ams to develop a disciphned and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obhgations
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6 Financial nsk management (continued)

Risk management framework (continued)

(a) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
anses pnncipally from the Group's recewables from customers, amounts due from related parties and
investment securties

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades mainly with recognised and crediworthy third parties It 1s the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject fo credit venfication procedures and are required to
submit financial guarantees based on therr creditworthiness In addition, recewvable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts i1s not significant

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents s estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other recewvables The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates
to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified The collective loss allowance 1s determined
based on histoncal data of payment statistics for similar financial assets

Other financial assets

Credit nsk ansing from other financial assets of the Group comprises cash and cash equivalents and certain
denvative instruments The Group’s exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments

1
The Group manages its ¢redit nsks with regard to bank depostts, throughout the Group, through a number of
controls, which include assessing the credit rating of the bank either from public credit ratings, or intemal
analysis where public data 1s not available and consideration of the support for financial institutions from therr
central banks or other regulatory authorities

Financial guarantees

The Group's policy 1s to consider the provision of a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidianes, where
there 1s a commercial rationale to do so Guarantees may also be provided to assocrates and joint ventures in
very lmited circumstances and always only for the Group’s share of the obligation The provision of guarantees
always requires the approval of semior management

[{ )] Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet ds financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's approach to managing iquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient cash to
meet its llabiities when due, under both normal and stressed condiions, without incurnng unacceptable losses
or nsking damage to the Group’s reputation

The Group’s objective 1s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank faciites and by ensunng adequate intemally generated funds The Group's terms of business require
amounts to be paid within 60 days of the date of provision of the service Trade payables are normally settled
within 45 days of the date of purchase
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6 Financial nsk management (continued)

(c) Market nsk

Market nsk s the nsk that changes in market pnces, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments The objective of market nsk
management 1s to manage and control market nsk exposures within acceptabte parameters, while optimising
the return

The Group buys and sells denvatives and also incurs financtal habilties, in order to manage market nsks All
such transactions are camed out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors i the Group Treasury
policy Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatiity n the
consolidated income statement

()] Currency nsk

The proportion of the Group's net operating assets denominated in foreign currencies 1s approximately 75 7%
(2014 64 8%) with the result that the Group's consolidated statement of financial position, and in particular
owner's equity, can be affected by currency movements when it 1s retranslated at each year end rate The
Group partially mitigates the effect of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which
the assets are denominated and using cross currency swaps The impact of currency movements on operating
profit 1s parhally mitigated by interest costs being incurred i foreign currencies The Group operates In some
locations where the local currency 1s fixed to the Group's presentation currency of £ further reducing the nisk of
currency movements

Interest on borrowings 1s denominated in the currency of the borrowings Generally, borrowings are
denominated n currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying foreign operations of the
Group This provides an economic hedge without denvatives being entered into and therefore hedge accounting
1s not applied in these circumstances

A portton of the Group’s activittes generate part of ther revenue and incur some costs outside thewr main
functional currency Due to the diverse number of locations in which the Group operates there 1s some natural
hedging that occurs within the Group When 1t 1s considered that currency votatility could have a matenal impact
on the results of an operation, hedging using forward foreign curmrency contracts 1s undertaken to reduce the
short-term effect of currency movements

When the Group’s businesses enter into capital expenditure or lease commitments in currencies other than ther
main functional currency, these commitments are hedged i most instances using forward contracts and
currency swaps in order to fix the cost when converted to the functional currency The Group classifies its
forward exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value

(1) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates pnmanly to the Group's long-term
debt obligations with a fixed/floating interest rate and bank deposits
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6 Financial nsk management (continued)
(c} Market nisk {continued)
{]}] Interest rate nisk (continued)

The Group’s palicy 1s to manage its interest cost by entenng into interest rate swap agreements, in which the
Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and vanable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount These swaps are designated to hedge
underiying debt obligations

At 31 December 2015, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approxmately 88 2% (2014 82%) of
the Group's bomowings are at a fixed rate of interest.

Capital management

The Board's policy 15 to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustan future development of the business Capital consists of share capital, share premium, retained
earmings, hedging and other reserves, actuanal reserve and translation reserve The pnmary objective of the
Group's capital management 1s to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios i order
o support its business and maximise shareholder value The Board seeks to maintan a balance between the
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and secunty afforded by
a sound capital position

Neither the Company nor any of its substdianes are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

The key performance ratios as at 31 December are as follows

£ millon

Nots 2016 2014

Total interest bearing loans and borrowings 19 1,107 3 961 2
tess cash and cash equivalents 18 (269 4) (249 2)
Total net debt 8379 7120
Total Equity 36603 35772
Adjusted EBITDA 7 Mo7 2880
Net finance costs before separately disclosed items 435 264
Net debt / Equity 023 020
Net debt / Adjusted EBITDA 25 25
Interest cover before separately disclosed items 78 109
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7 Operating segments

The internal management reparts which are prepared under EU-IFRS are reviewed by the Board of Directors {Chief Operating
Decision Maker) based on the location of the Group's assets and habilties The Group has dentified the following geographic
areas as its basis of segmentation The Group measures segment performance based on the earnings before separately
disclosed items, interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ("Adjusted EBITDA")

« Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent
. Austraha and Amencas
. Europe and Afnca

Each of these operating segments have an individual appointed as Segment Director responsible for these segments, who in
turn reports to the Chref Operating Decision Maker

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group also reports unallocated head office costs, finance costs, finance
income and tax expense under the head office segment

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment 1s included below

£ million
2015
Asia Paclfic Australia Europe
Nota and Indian and and Head Total
By region subcontinent Amaricas Africa Office group
Revenue 274 4 404 2 254 2 - 9328
Segment results from operations 1172 1136 75 (63 9) 1744
Finance Income 10 - - - 538 538
Finance expenses 10 - - - (90 9) (90 9)
Profiti(loss) for the year 117 2 11386 75 {101 0) 1373
Depreciation and amortisation 290 403 .7 04 1094
Impairment losses - - 04 - 04
Share of profit of equity accounted 14 695 06 101 - go2
investees before separately disclosed
items
Tax expenses 1 - - - 56 2 56 2
Capital expenditure 534 481 126 2 01 2278
Segment assets
Current and non-current assets 5004 1,068 4 1,275 3 24754 53185
Equity-accounted investments 14 3023 8 1300 74 4455
Taxation assets - - - 167 167
Cash 18 - - - 2694 269 4
Total assets 8027 1,074 2 1,405 3 2,768 9 6,051 1
Segment habilities
Current and non-current habilities 1898 087 128 8 1341 761 4
Taxation liabilities - - - 467 8 467 8
Financial instruments 20 - - - 543 54 3
Loans and borrowings 19 - - - 1,107 3 1,407 3
Total habihties 1898 387 1288 1,763 5 2,390 8
Revenue before separately disclosed 2252 404 2 254 2 - 883 6
items
EBITDA (Adjusted) 146 2 153 & 478 (73 3406
Finance income 10 - - - 474 47 4
Finance costs 10 - - - (90 9) (90 9)
Tax expense 11 - - - (56 2) {56 2)
Depreciation and amortisation (29 0) (40 3} (397) (0 4) (109 4)
Adjusted net profit 117 2 1136 81 (107 4) 1315
Adjusted for separately disclosed items 9 - - (06) 64 58
Profit from continuing operations M7 2 1136 75 {101 0) 137 3
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7. Operating segments (continued}
E rnillion
2014
Asia Paciic Australia Europe
Note and Indian and and Head Total
By region subcontingnt Amencas Afnca Offica group
Revenue 2369 3675 2332 - 8376
Segment results from operations 105 5 106 2 198 (86 8) 126 8
Finance income 10 - - - 441 441
Finance expenses 10 - - - (720) {72 0)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1055 106 2 19 (114 7) 98 9
Depreciation and amortisation 271 372 47 06 996
Impaiment losses - - - - -
Share of profit of equity accounted
investees before separately disclosed
items 14 570 05 102 - 677
Tax expenses 1 - - - 616 616
Capital expenditure 285 373 790 13 146 1
Segment assets
Current and non-current assets 4806 699 4 1,222 5 2,447 6 4,850 1
Equity-accounted investments 14 2576 58 876 90 3598
Taxation assets - - - 228 228
Cash 18 - - - 249 2 2492
Total assets 7382 7050 1,310 1 2,7286 5,481 9
Segment habiibes
Current and non-current habilities 1633 706 940 1459 473 8
Taxation habiities - - - 406 2 406 2
Fiancial mstruments 20 - - - 635 635
Loans and borrowings 19 - - - 9612 9612
Total habilities 163 3 706 8940 1,576 8 1,904 7
Revenue before separately disclosed
items 205 1 3675 2332 - 805 8
EBITDA (Adjusted) 1315 143 4 390 {25 9) 2880
Finance income 10 - - - 431 431
Finance costs 10 - - - (69 5) (69 5)
Tax expense 1 - - - (616) {61 B)
Depreciation and amortisation (27 1) {37 2) (34 7) {0 6) {99 6)
Ad|usted net profit 104 4 106 2 43 (114 5) 1004
Adjusted for separately disclosed tems 9 10 - {2 5) - (15)
Profit from continuing operations 105 4 106 2 18 (114 5) 98 9
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8 Net operating costs

£ mithon
Included within Group operating profit are the following items 2015 2014
Depreciation and amortisation of prepaid leases, intangible assets and property plant and equipment 109 4 996
Audit fee 09 10
Operating lease rental 114 4 107 0
Hire of plant, machinery and ships 1556 158
£ milhon
Fees paid to the company's prnincipal auditor - KPMG 2015 2014
Fees pad to the company's auditer for the audit of the company's accounts 01 02

Fees paid to the company's auddter and its associates for services pursuant to legistation
Audit of the company's subsidianes 08 08
Other services - -
09 10

Non-audit and other assurance services

Tax services - 05
Valuation and actuanal services - -
All other services 02 -
02 05
Total of audit and non-audit services 11 15

Fees of £36,000 (2014 £48,000), n respect of the audit, and Nil (2014 Nil), in respect of tax services, were paid to

KPMG LLP by the UK pension scheme

9 Separately disclosed items

£ millon
2015

Sale of Net financing
Operating profit businesses cost Total
Impaiment of property, plant and equipment 04) - - {0 4)
Net gain on restructunng of loan - - 51 61
Ineffective interest rate swaps - - 03 03
Loss on sale and temunation of business - 02) - (0 2)
(0 4) {0 2) 64 58
£ million
2014

Sale of Nat financing
Opeorating profit businassas cost Total
Ineffective interest rate swaps - - {(15) {1 5)
. - (15 {15)
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10 Net financing expenses
£ milion
2015 2014
Finance income
Interest income 354 295
Exchange gains 181 14 6
Fair value gain 03 -
538 44 1
Finance expenses
Interest expense (62 2) (47 7}
Exchange losses (24 3) (17 7}
Farr value loss - {2 5}
Net interest costs in respect of pension plans {4 4) (41)
(90 9) (72 0)
Net financing expense (37 1) (27 9}
1 Taxation
£ million
2015 2014
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge for the year 147 (100)
Adjustment in respect of prior years (02) 01
145 (9 9)
Overseas tax
Current tax charge for the year {86 6) {50 4)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 88 34
{77 8) {47 0)
Total current tax (63.3) (56 9}
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of iemporary differences in the current year 68 24)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 03 23)
Tax on profit for the year {56.2) (61 6)

The adjustments in respect of pnor penods of £8 9 milhon (2014 £1 2 millton) anses from the finahsation and

agreement of pnor year tax computations for comparnies in the UK and overseas

The rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 21% to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 Further reductions to 19% on 1
Aprl 2017 and 18% from 1 Apnl 2020 were enacted in the penod The group re-measured i1s UK deferred tax
assets and lhabiliies at the end of the reporting penod in 2015 to the rate of 18% The re-measurement did not

have a matenal effect on the 2015 results
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Factors affecting the taxation charge for the current year

The total taxation charge i1s higher (2014 thigher) than the profit on ordinary activittes multiplied by the standard
rate of corporation tax in the UK at 20 25 per cent (2014 21 5 per cent) The differences are explained as follows

Reconciliation of the effective tax rate % £ millon % £ milhon
2015 2014
Profit before taxation 193§ 160 5
Profit befora taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 20 25% {39 2} 21 5% (34 5)
Effects of
Non-taxable income less expenses not deductible for tax
purposes, other than impairment of goodwill 08% 16 {7 9%} (12 5)
Tax deduction in respect of pension schemes 08% 15 10% 15
Unrelieved tax losses carned forward {1 3%} (2 4) (7 8%) (12 5)
Utihsation of tax losses 02% 03 52% 83
Accounting profits on chargeable assets - - - -
Changes in the UK corporation tax rate 0 4% o8 01% 02
Higher rate taxes on overseas eamings {22 5%} {43 7) (22 7%) (36 5)
withholding and other taxes suffered oversees (9 5%) {18 4) {4 2%) (6 8)
Tax on earnings from equity accounted investees 17 8% 344 18 7% 300
Adjustments to tax charge In respect of pnor penods 48% 89 07% 12
Effective tax rate (29 0%) {56 2) (38 4%) (81 6)

The profit before taxation of £193 5 million (2014 £160 5 mullion) includes the Group’s share of profits of equity
accounted investees within continuing operations of £80 2 mullion (2014 £67 7 million) which 1s net of a tax
charge of £34 4 mithon (2014 £30 0 million)

The Group’s overseas tax rates are typically a mixture of rates higher and lower than 20 25 per cent They
include the effect of overseas tax benefits available to infrastructure projects
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12 Intangible assets
£ mijlion
Peort concession
rights Goodwll Total
Cost
At 1 January 2015 4241 374 4615
Disposals 11 {01) {12)
Additions 708 - 708
Acquired through business combinations 2545 733 3278
Exchange adjustments {13) (07) (20)
At 31 December 2015 7470 1099 856 9
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 (194 4) - (194 4)
Disposals 11 - 11
Charge for the year 21 1) - {21 1)
Exchange adjustments 07 - 07
At 31 December 2015 {2151) - (215 1)
Net book amount at 31 December 2015 5319 109 ¢ 6418
Cost
At 1 January 2014 3581 343 3924
Disposals ©mn - 01)
Additons 507 - 507
Acquired through business combinations 01 26 27
Exchange adjustments 153 05 158
At 31 December 2014 424 1 374 4615
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 (169 6) - {169 6)
Disposals - - -
Charge for the year (17 2) - (17 2)
Exchange adjustments (76) - (78)
At 31 December 2014 (194 4) - (194 4)
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 2297 374 2671

At 31 December 2015, port concession nghts with a carrying amount of £4 0 mulion (2014 £4 2 nulhion) are
pledged to secure bank loans (refer to note 19)
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12 Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwili

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and port concession nghts with indefinite useful lives have
been allocated to various cash-generating units {“CGU"), which are repostable business units, for the purposes
of iImpairment testing

Impairment testing 1s done at operating port (or group of ports) level that represents an individual CGU Details
of the CGUs by operating segment are shown below

Cash-generating units

apgregated by operating Carrying Carrying Perpetuity
segment amount of amount of Discount growth
port CONCession
Goadwll nghts with indefinte rate rate
useful ife
£ million £ milhien % Y%
2015
Europe and Africa 108 5851 5575 2526
Australia and Americas 86 5 - 60-70 25
Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent 126 - 85-120 25
Total 109 9 5851
2014
Europe and Africa 132 5851 5565 2526
Austrahia and Americas 133 - 65 25
Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent 109 - 85-125 25
Total 374 585 1

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determmed based on their value in use calculated using cash
flow projections based on the financial budgets approved by management covenng a three year penod and a
further outtook for five years, which 1s considered appropnate in view of the outlook for the industry and the
long-term nature of the concession agreements held 1 e generally for a period of 25-50 years

In the view of the senior management, the perpetual growth rate 1s the mmimum growth rate expected to be
achieved beyond the eight year period

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to

undertake impairment testing of goodwill and port concession rights with indefimte useful ves

Budgeted margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted margin 13 the average
gross margin achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted year, adjusted for expected efficiency
improvements, price fluctuations and manpower costs

Discount rates — These represent the cost of capital adjusted for the respective location nsk factors The Group
uses the post-tax industry average Weighted Average Cost of Capital which reflects the country specific nsk
adjusted discount rate

Cost inflation — The forecast general price index 1s used to determine the cost inflation dunng the budget year
for the relevant countnes where the Group Is operating

Perpeturty growth rate — In management's view, the perpetuity growth rate 1s the mimmum growth rate expected
to be achieved beyond the eight year period This 1s based on the overall regiohal economic growth forecasted
and the Group's existing intemnal capacity changes for a given region The Group also takes into account
competition and regional capacity growth to provide a comprehensive growth assumption for the entire portfolio

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with the past expenence of management

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of value in use for the CGU 1s sensitive to future earnings and therefore a sensitivity analysts
was performed The analysis demonstrated that a 10% decrease in earnings for a future penod of three years
from the reporting date would not result in impairment
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13 Property Plant and Equipment

£ million
Property Ships E qf' 'f;?r“:‘r::‘: cap"“'p‘:';‘r‘;;: Total
Cost
At 1 January 2015 789.9 1650 1,216 7 548 2,226 4
Additions 03 33 84 1450 1570
Acquisitiens through business combinations 07 - 137 79 223
Transfers from capital work-in-progress 58 131 283 (47 2) -
Disposals (0 1) (24 2) (10 2} - {34 5)
Exchange adjustments 20 17 {84) {14) (9 5)
At 31 December 2015 798 6 1555 1,248 5 1591 2,3617
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 (157 8) (50 1) (281 4) - (489 3)
Charge for the year (23 8) {89) (55 6) - (88 3}
Impairment losses - - {0 4) - {0 4)
Acquisitions through business combinations 01 - 07 - 08
Disposals 01 129 99 - 229
Exchange adjustments {0 2) 14 63 - 75
At 31 December 2015 {181 6) (44 7) {320 5) - (546 8)
Net book amount at 31 December 2015 6170 1108 928 0 1591 1,814 9
Cost
At 1 January 2014 722 4 1362 7953 4387 2,093 6
Additions 60 157 g2 645 954
Acquisibons through business combinations - 542 30 04 576
Transfers from capital work-in-progress 559 04 3940 (450 3) -
Disposals 09 {28 4) (20 8} - {50 1}
Exchange adjustments 65 (13 1) 360 05 299
At 31 December 2014 7899 1650 1,216 7 54 8 2,226 4
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 {1356 0} {62 0} (240 0) - (438 0)
Charge for the year (227} (7 6) {521) - (82 4)
Acquisitions through business combinations - (14 8) (19) - (16 7)
Disposals 09 284 200 - 493
Exchange adjustments - 59 (74) - (15)
At 31 Decemmber 2014 {157 8) (50 1} (281 4) - {489 3)
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 6321 1149 89353 548 1,737 1

At 31 December 2015, property, plant and equpment with a carrying amount of £1,306 1 million (2014 £1,243 8
milhion) are pledged to secure bank loans {refer to note 19) At 31 December 2015, the net carrying value of the leased
plant and equipment and other assets was £79 7 million (2014 £95 million)

Borrowing costs capitalised to property, plant and equipment amounted to £13 7 millon (2014 £17 1 million} with a
capttalisation rate in the range of 294% to 391% per annum (2014 294% to 391% per annum)
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14. Investments in equity accounted investees
The following table summanses the financial information for equity-accounted investees, adjusted for fair

value adjustments at acquisiion and reconciled to the camying amount of Group's interest in equity-
accounted investees as included in consolidated statement of financial position

£ milllon
Cost at 1 January 2014 3639
Additions 11
Share of profits for the year 677
Share of actuanal losses, net of tax 06
Share of movement In effective portion of cash-flow hedges, net of tax 08
Dwvidends (81 5)
Exchange adjustments 72
Cost at 31 December 2014 3598
Cost at 1 January 2015 3598
Additions 361
Share of profits for the year 802
Share of actuanal losses, net of tax (0 5}
Share of movement In effective portion of cash-flow hedges, net of tax (0 9)
Share of movement in ¢ther reserves 20
Dwvidends {23 9)
Exchange adjustments 73
Cost at 31 December 2015 4455
Summansed financial information for equity accounted investees
£ millon
2015 2014
Sales and other operating revenues 3554 3421
Profit before interest and taxation 1268 1103
Finance costs (12 0) (12 6)
Profit before taxation 1148 977
Taxation (34 4) (30 0}
Profit for the year 804 677
Non-current assets 6058 6229
Current assets 214 8 1329
Total assets 8236 755 8
Current habilites (96 4) (135 4)
Non-current fiabilities (346 0) (312 3)
Total habilties (442 4) {447 7)
Net assets 3812 3081
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14 Investments in equity accounted investees (continued)

Significant investments in princtpal Joint Ventures and Associates include

Qunershie  Country of Incorporation Prnapal sciviles
Joint ventures
PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya 49 00% Indonesia Container terminal operations
Associates
Antwerp Gateway N V 60 00% Belgium Container terminzl cperations
Portus Indico 48 50% United Arab Emirates Container terminal operations
Asian Terminat Inc 4172% Philippines Container terminal operations
taem Chabang International Terminal Co Ltd 34 50% Thailand Container termunal operations
Eurcfos SARL 50 00% France Container terminal operations
Generzale de Manutention Portuare S A 50 00% France Container terminal operations
Qingdao Chanwan Container Terminal Co Ltd 2900% People's Republic of China Container terminal operations
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15 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and habifities attnbutable to the following

£ miflion

Assets Liabihittes Net 2015
Property, plant and equipment (18) 549 531
Intangible assets ©8 651 645
Investment in equity accounted investees oo 129 129
Employee benefits (48} 00 48
Provisions (10} 00 (10}
Tax value of loss carned forward recognised (18 2) 00 (16 2)
Financial instruments ©n 01 (5 6)
Capital gain oo 266 0 266 0
Other {18) 235 217
Total tax (assets)/liabilities (359) 4225 3866
Tax offsat 358 (358) 00
Total tax {assets)/liabilities after offset 1 3867 3866

Assels Liabiities Net 2014
Property, plant and equipment (22) 582 56 0
intangible assets (0 5) 01 (0 4)
Investment in equity accounted investees B 17 2 172
Employee benefits {5 8) - (5 8)
Provisions (19) b {19)
Tax value of loss carried forward recognised (11 8) - (11 8)
Financial instruments (13 1) 03 (12 8)
Capital gain " 252 9 2529
Other (1 1) 183 172
Total tax {assets)/iabilities (36 4) 3470 3106
Tax offset 280 {28 0) -
Total tax (assets)/habiities after offset (8 4) 3180 3106

Deferred tax s not recognised on losses of £469 0 million (2014 £481 3milion) where utihsation 1s uncertain, either
because they have not been agreed with tax authonties, or because the hikelihood of future taxable profils 1s not
sufficiently certain, or because of the impact of tax holidays

Under current legislation, £406 1m (2014 £4112m) of the tax losses shown above can be carried forward
indefinitely
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15 Deferred tax assets and hiabilities (continued)

Movement in deferred tax during the year
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£ million
Balance Acquired Recogrused
at1 balances in other Balance at 31
January Exchange Recogrised and comprehen- December
2015  movements In income  disposals Sive income 2015
Property, plant and equipment 560 @7 @8 14 00 531
Intangible assets o4 35 ©7 691 00 645
Investment in joint ventures and assoclates 172 ©1 42 00 00 129
Employee benefits 58) 00 03 00 07 (48)
Provisions {19) 01 08 00 00 1o
Tax value of loss camed forward recognised 13 01 (4 5) 0o 00 (162)
Financial instruments (128) ©1 0o 0o 33 (96
2529 131 00 00 0o 266 0
Capital gain
Other 172 00 48 00 (0 3) 27
Total tax hiabiiies/{(assets) 3106 89 71 705 37 3866
Balance Acquired  Recognised
at1 balances in other  Balance at 31
January Exchange  Recognised and comprehen- December
2014 movements ininccme  disposals  sive income 2014
Property, plant and equipment 587 10 (7 6} 39 - 550
Intangible assets 04 01 {0 1) - . (0 4)
Investment in joint ventures and associates 161 - 11 - - 172
Employee benefits (39) 01 {C1) - (19 (5 8)
Provisions (186) - {0 2) {01} - (19
Tax value of loss carred forward recogmised {20 7) 18 71 - - (11 8)
Financial instruments {(32) (02) 01 - (8 5) (12 8}
Capital gan 238 4 141 04 - - 2529
Other 131 02 40 01 (0 2) 17 2
Total tax iabilities/{assets) 296 5 171 47 40 {11 6) 3106
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16 Trade and other receivables
£ mullion
2015 2014

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade receivables 867 - 717 -
Other recevables 635 147 496 134
Prepayments and accrued income 308 06 366 43
Employee benefit assets - - - 02
1810 153 157 9 179

Loans to group undertakings
Loans to the intermediate parent company 24721 - 2,441 1 -
Loans to fellow subsidianes 1307 173 1600 224
2,6028 173 2.6011 224

Trade recevables are reported net of a provision of £1 2 million (2014 £1 3 milion)

The Group's exposure to crecit and currency nsks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are
disclosed in note 29

Amounts owed by Group undertakings bear interest in reference to LIBOR and are repayable by mutual agreement of
the relevant parties The directors believe that these loans are recoverable which 1s supported by cash repayments of
£141 2 milion received in 2015 (2014 £87 2 million)

17 Other investments
£ million
2015 2014
Debt securities held-to-matunty 51 55
Financial assets at farr value through profit and loss 242 242
293 297
(a) The movement in debt secunttes held to matunty mainly relates to redemption of £ 04 million (2014 £06
million) dunng the year
(b) The movement schedule for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss Is as given below -
£ million
2015 2014
Balance as of 1 January 242 242
Additions dunng the year - -
Balance as of 31* December 242 242

The Group's exposure to credit, currency and interest rate nsks related to other investments is disclosed in note 29
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18. Cash and cash equivalents

£ milhon

2015 2014

Bank balances 1008 160 5
Call deposits 1557 817
Deposits under lien 129 70
Cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of financial position 269 4 249 2
Bank overdrafts - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated statement of cash flows 2694 249 2

The Group's exposure to interest rate nsk and a sensitvity analysis for financial assets and habildies are
disclosed in note 28

The deposits under lien are placed to collateralise some of the borrowings of the Company's subsidianes (refer
to note 19)

19. Interest beaning loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group interest bearing loans and borrowings,
which are measured at amortised costs For information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign
currency risk, see note 29

£ milhon
2015 2014

Non-current
Secured bank loans 6924 524 2
Mortgage debenture stock 14 14
Unsecured loan 77 63
Unsecured bark loans 3523 307 4
Unsecured bond 1ssues 54 81
Finance lease labilihes 139 165
Total non-current 1,0731 8609

Current

Secured bank loans 234 897
Unsecured bank loans 64 66
Finance lease habilities 44 40
Total current 2 1003
Total current and non-current 1,107 3 9612
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19 Interest bearing loans and borrowings {continued)

Terms and debt repayment schedule
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£ million
lntnrazl:‘:::el I_:::J rfl':' Face value Carrying value

Unsecured loans

CAD Vanable 2018 605 605

INR Vanable 2019-2022 1239 123 9

usD Vanable 2018 1743 174 3
Secured loans

usD Vanable 2016- 2030 894 89 4

usD 300% 2019 16 16

usD 5 98% to 8% 2022 228 228

EUR Variable 2016.2022 125 125

EUR 425% 2031 54 54

PKR Variable 2019 421 421

cept Vanable 2019-2024 5427 5427

GBP 7 50% 2017 (07) on
Unsecured bond issues

uso 7875% 2027 54 54
Unsecured loan

EUR 2 50% 4 00% Indefinite 77 77

duration

Mortgage debentures stocks

GBP 3 50% Undated 14 14
Finance leases

Various currencies 262% to 13 58% 2018- 2054 183 183
Total 1,107 3 1,107 3

+ The above loans relating to London Gateway Port were refinanced in March 2016 with GBP 580m, for a tenure

of 30 years
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19 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)
2014 £ milien
I nle::ZT::ﬂ;e r::::noi; Face value Carrying value
Unsecured loans
CAD Varnable 2018 742 742
INR Vanable 2018-2019 74 4 74 4
usp Vanahle 2018 1654 1654
Secured toans
uUspD Vanable 2015- 2020 106 4 106 4
UsD 3 00% 2019 20 20
usbo 5 65% to 8% 2022 237 237
EUR Vanable 2015-2031 158 158
EUR 632% 2015 02 02
PKR Varnable 2019 417 417
ZAR 9 50% 2017 02 02
GBP Varable 2031 4227 4227
GBP 8 50% 2017 12 12
Unsecured bond 1ssues
uspo 7 88% 2027 51 51
Unsecured loan
EUR 25%t0400%  Dayave an 63 63
Mortgage debentures stocks
GBP 350% Undated 14 14
Finance leases
Varnious currencies 26%to 30 0% 2015- 2054 205 205
Total 961 2 961 2

Finance lease habtlities

The Group classifies certain property, plant and equipment as finance leases where it retains all nsks and rewards
incidental to the ownership The net carrying values of these assets are disclosed in note 13

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net miumum lease
paymenis are as follows

£ million

Future Future Prasent

Minimum finance value of

Lease charges Minimum Leass

Payments Payments

2015

Less than one year 62 (12) 50
Between one and five years 129 (21} 108
More than five years 54 (29) 25
Total 245 (62) 1813
2014

Less than one year 53 {13) 40
Between one and five years 166 249 142
More than five years 57 (34) 23
Total 276 71 205
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19 interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Certain property, plant and equipment and port concession nghts are pledged against the facilities obtained from
the banks (refer to note 12 and note 13) The deposits under lken amounting to £ 12 9 million (2014 £ 7 0 mullion)
are placed to collaterahse some of the borrowings of the Company's subsidianes (refer to note 18)

There has been no issuance or repayment of debt secunties in the current year (2074 Nif) At 31 December 2015,
the undrawn committed borrowing facilitres of £ 244 3 million (2014 £ 389 6 mullron) were available to the Group,
in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met

20 Trade and other payables

£ mullion

2015 2014
Current Nen-currant Current Non-current
Trade payables 490 - 511 -
Other unsecured payables a7 6 116 782 92
Accruals and deferred income 1050 a5 106 6 87
Fair value of denvative financial instruments 08 535 01 634
2524 736 2360 813
Loan from parent undertaking - - - -
Loan from fellow subsidiaries 518 2918 350 261
518 2318 350 261

The Group's exposure to currency and iquidity risk related to trade and other payables 1s disclosed in note 29
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24 Non-controlling interest
£
mithon
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Other
Europe indwvidually Other
and \mmatenal Gross Europe and individually Gross
Afnca subsidianes Total Afnca region immatenal Total
region . subsidiaries *
Balance sheet mformation
Non-current assets 874
Current assets 600
Non-current liabilittes (34 5)
Current habilties {25 B}
Net assets (100%) 871
Carrying amount of NCI as at 31
December 301 301 427 278 705
Income statement information
Revenue 1108 1282
Profit after tax 127 139
Other comprehensive mcome, net of tax 04 (74)
Total comprehensive income (100%), net of 131 131 65 65
tax
Profit allocated to NCI 52 130 19 2 68 15 40 222
QCI allocated to NCI 02 (30) (2 8) (3 6) 10 {2 6)
Total comprehensive income allocated to 64 100 16 4 33 16 4 196
NCI
Cash flows from operating activities 275
Cash flows from investing activities 48)
Cash flows from financing actwities (14
Dwidends paid to NCI - -

* There are no matenal subsicianes with NCI in the Group

22 Issued capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account include the tolal net proceeds on issue of the
Company’s equity share capital The authonsed share capital ts £953 2 million (2014 £953 2 million) being the allotted
capital together with £410 0 million (2014 £110 0 mithon) of unclassified shares The nominal value of each class of
share unit 1s £1 The number of shares held 1s 843 2 milion The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital was
£843 2 milon as at 31 December 2015 {2014 £843 2 million)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations that are not integral to the operations of the Company, as well as from the effective portion of
translation of habilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign subsidiary
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22 Issued capital and reserves {continued)

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedging instruments related to hedged transactons that have not yet occurred

Other reserves

Other reserves of £170 5 milhon {2014 £170 5 million) 1s made up of the Group’s merger reserve of £454 2 million
(2014 £454 2 millon) and capial reserve £161 4 milion (2014 £161 4 milkon), less goodwill deducted from
reserves of £451 8 miulion (2014 £451 9 million), all ansing under UK GAAP prior to transition to IFRS, plus a
capital redemption reserve of £3 3 milion (2014 £3 3 millon) and amounts relating to share based payments of
£3 5 million (2014 £3 5 million)

23 Employees

£ million
Employee costs 2015 2014
Wages and salanes 186 6 166 1
Social secunty costs 103 97
Pension and other post-retrement benefit costs 249 222
2218 198 0

Average number of employees at 31 Decernber
UK full time 1,069 985
UK part time 20 22
Overseas full time 4,699 4,688
Oversees part time 148 104
Sea Staff 363 456
6,299 6,255

24 Employee benefits

The Group participates in a number of pension schemes throughout the world The principal scheme 1s located in
the UK (the “P&0O UK Scheme”) The P&0O UK Scheme 1s a funded defined benefit scheme and was closed to
routine new members on 1 January 2002 The pension fund 1s legally separated from the Group and managed by
a Trustee board The assets of the scheme are managed on hehalf of the Trustee by independent fund managers

The Group also operates a number of smaller defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes |n addition, the
Group participates in vanous industry multi-employer schemes, the most significant of which 1s the Merchant Navy
Officers’ Pension Fund (the “MNOPF Scheme™} and 1s in the UK These generally have assets held in separate
trustee administered funds which are legally separated from the Group

The board of a pension fund in the UK 1s required by law to act in the best interests of the fund participants and 1s
responsible for setting certain pohcies (e g mvestment, contnbutons and indexation policies) and determining
recovery plans if approprate

These defined benefit funds expose the Group to actuanal nsks, such as longewvity rnisk, currency nisk, interest rate
nsk and market (investment) nsk In addition, certain multi-employer industry schemes the Group can be exposed
to a pro-rata share of the credit nsk of other participating employers
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Reconciliation of assets and habilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial positton

£ midlion
2015 2014
Non-current
Defined benefit pension schemes net habilities 1209 1326
Liabities from defined contnbution pension schemes - -
Liabilities in respect of long service leave 03 03
Liabilities 1 respect of other deferred compensation 09 11
1221 1350
Current
Liabilities for deferred compensation 68 65
Net habihty 128 9 141 5
Reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows
Employee benefits assets included within non-current recevables (refer to note 16) - (0 2}
Employee benefit liabilties non-current 1221 1352
Employee benefit labilties current 68 65
1289 1415

The defined benefit pension schemes net habilities of £120 9 milion (2014 £133 6 milion) ts 1n respect of the
total Greup schemes shown on page 66

The current portion of employee benefits habiltties includes a hability of £5 4 million (2014 £5 1 million) tn respect
of annual leave, £0 4 millon (2014 £0 5 million) in respect of long service leave, and £1 million (2014 £09
milhon) in respect of sick leave and other miscellaneous employee benefit terns

An expense of £23 million (2014 £19 8 milien) has been recognised in the consoldated income statement for
the long term employee benefit schemes £5 8 million (2014 £4 6 million) in respect of defined benefit schemes,
£7 5 milhon (2014 £7 5 millicn) in respect of defined contnbution schemes and £9 7 millien (2014 £7 7 million) in
respect of other employee benefits

A net finance cost of £4 5 million (2014 £4 1 million} 1n respect of defined benefit funds has been recognised In
the consolidated ncome statement

The re-measurement of the net defined lability, gross of tax, recognised in consoldated statement of other
comprehensive income 1s as follows

£ million

2015 2014

Actuanal (gawn)/ loss recogmsed in the year (53 2} 1231
Return on plan assets lesser/ (greater) than the discount rate 381 {104 Q)
Change of share in multi-employer scheme {09) 181
Movement in minimum funding habiblity 188 52
38 42 4

62




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
24 Employee benefits {continued)

Actuanal valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2015 by qualfied
independent actuaries The pnincipal assumptions are included in the table below

The assumptions used by the actuanes are the best estmates chosen from a range of possible actuanal
assumptions, which, due to the tmescale covered, may nol necessanly be borne out in practice There are
ongoing discusstons with Trustees in regards to deficit recovery plans

P&O UK Scheme MNQPF Scheme Other Schemes

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Discount rates 370% 360% 370% 360% 3 90% 370%

Discount rates Bulk Annuity Asset 350% 335% - - - -

Expected rates of salary increases - 2 50% - - 320% 320%
Penston increases

- deferment 280% 2 80% 220% 215% 300% 300%

- payment 280% 2 80% 310% 305% 3 00% 3 00%

inflation 3 20% 3 15% 3 20% 3 15% 3 20% 3 20%

From 1 December 2011, changes have been made to the benefits provided by the P&0 UK Scheme These
mnclude a restriction to pay increases equal to the lower of Retail Pnce Index and 2 5% n a Scheme Year This
restriction is reflected in the pay increase assumption above and there 1s no allowance for promotional increases
The P&0O UK Scheme was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015, so future pay increases will no longer
be relevant after this date

The assumptions for pensioner longevity under both the P&0 UK Scheme and the MNOPF Scheme are based
on an analysis of pensioner death trends under the respective schemes over many years

For illustration, the life expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and in the future are detailed in the table
below

Male Female
85 20
AgeeSnow  eeSSInZ0yean Age 65 now A o
2015
P&0 UK Scheme 234 266 258 289
MNOPF Scheme 227 256 26 3 293
2014
P&0O UK Scheme 233 263 256 287
MNOPF Scheme 226 254 262 292

At 31 December 2015 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 15 8 years (2014 16
years)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant {in
practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated), would have
increased the net defined benefit lability as at 31 December 2015 by the amounts shown below

£ million
0 1% reduction in discount rate 123
0 1% increase in inflation assumption and related assumptions 54
0 25% p a increase in the long term rate of mortality improvement 79

The methads and type of assumptions used in prepanng sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous penod
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The schemes’ strategic asset allocations across the sectors of the main asset classes are
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Group
schemes
P20 UK Scheme MNOPF Schema Other Schemes fair velua
E'miflien Emilion Emithon £mulion

2015
Equities 306 3 547 647 4257
Bonds 1205 940 767 2912
Other 207 - 228 435
Value of insured pensioner liability 763 3 - - 7633
1,210 8 148 7 164 2 15237

2014
Equities 3210 487 563 426 0
Bonds 1175 898 771 284 4
Other 196 - 248 44 4
Value of imsured pensioner lability 8168 - - 8168
1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,571 6

With the exception of the insured pensioner lability all matenal investments have guoted prnices in active

markets
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24 Employee benefits (continued)

Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme
assets for the penod ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

£ millon
Defined benefit pansion schemes Total
P&O UK MNOPF Other Group
Scheme Sch Schemes Schemes
Present value of obligaticn at 1 January 2015 (1,328 7) {158 0) {209 9) (1,696 6)
Employer's interest cost (46 6) (586) 77N 599)
Employer's current service cost 04) - (28) (32)
Settlements dunng the year 88 - - 88
Contnbutions by scheme participants - - o7 (07)
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 01 01
Benefits pa:d 640 71 68 779
Change of share in multi-employer scheme - - 35 35
Expernence gains on scheme liabilities 233 59 33 325
Actuanal gain on scheme liabilities due to change in ) _ 13 113
demographic assumptions
Actuanal gains on scheme habilites due to change in
financial gssumpuons s 166 17 11 194
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2015 {1,263 0) {148 9) (205 0} (1,616 9)
Present value of cbligation at 1 January 2014 (1,251 3) (130 8) (154 8) (1,536 7)
Employer's interest cost (530) (56} (6 8) {65 5)
Employer's current service cost (0 4) - {2 2) (2 6}
Contrnibutions by scheme participants - - {07) (07)
Effect of movement (n exchange rates - - (02) (02)
Benefits pad 667 57 69 793
Change of share i mult-employer scheme - (14 6) (32 5) {47 1)
Expenence gans/{loss) on scheme habilities 85 a2 {14 8) {6 1)
Actuanal losses on scheme habiites due to change in (18) i _ (18
demographic assumptions
Actuanal losses on scheme habiites due to change In
financial assumptions @74 (129) “9 (1152)
Present value of obhigation at 31 December 2014 (1,328 7) (158 0) (209 9) {1,696 6)
Fatr value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,5716
Interest Income on assets 448 50 59 557
Return on plan assets greater than the discount rate {43 6) 56 (11) (391)
Contnbutions by employer 87 73 106 266
Contnbutions by scheme participants - - 07 07
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 01 01
Benefits paid (64 0) (7 1) (68) (77 9}
Change of share in mult-employer scheme - - (2 6) (2 6}
Settlements during the year (8 4) - - (8 4}
Administration costs incurred during the year (16) {0 6) (0 8) (3 0)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2015 1,210 8 148 7 164 2 1,523 7
Defined benefit schemes net habilities (52 2) {0 2) {40 8) (93 2)
Minimum funding habithty - {20 6) (71 {27 7)
Net liability recognised in the consoilidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015 (522) (208) (47 9) (1209)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2014 1,206 7 1056 126 1 1,438 4
Interest income on assets 512 46 57 615
Return on plan assets greater than the discount rate 763 180 97 1040
Contnbutions by employer 86 52 54 192
Contributions by scheme participants - - 07 07
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 01 01
Benefits pad {66 7) 57 (69) {79 3)
Change of share in muit-employer scheme - 111 179 290
Administration costs incurred dunng the year (12) (0 3) {05) {(20)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2014 1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,571 6
Defined benefit scheme net habilties {53 8) (19 5) 81 7) {125 0)
Minimum funding hability - (8 6) - (86)
Net hability recognised in the consothdated statement of (538) (28 1) (517) {133 6)

financial position as at 31 Decemnber 2014
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Where a surplus anses on a scheme, in accordance with IAS19 and IFRIC14, the surplus Is recognised as an
asset only if it represents an unconditional economic benefit available to the Group in future Any surplus in excess
of thus benefit 1s not recognised in the statement of financial positron A mimmum funding hability anses where the
statutory funding requirements are such that future contnbutions in respect of past service will result in a future
unrecognisable surplus

The below table shows the movement in minimum funding hiability -

£ million

2015 2014

Mimimum funding Labifity as on 1 January (&6} )]

Interest cost on mimmum funding liabtlity C 3 o1

Actuarial movement dunng the year (18 8} (52)

Effect of movement in exchange rates - -

Minimum funding hiability as on 31 December @277 &6
It 1s anticipated that the Group will make the following contnbutions to the pension schemes in 2016

Total Group

P&O UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme Other Schemes schemes

£'milhon £ milhon £'million £rulbson

Pension scheme contnbutions 84 48 74 206

P&O UK Scheme

Formal actuanal valuations of the P&0O UK Scheme are normally carned out tnennially by qualified independent
actuaries, the latest completed regular valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 2013, using the
projected unit credit method

As a result of valuation P&0 committed to regular monthly deficit payments from Apnl 2013 of £697 6 milhen until
November 2021

in December 2007, as part of a process developed with the Group to de-nisk the pension scheme, the Trustee
transferred £800 million of P&0O UK Scheme assets to Paternoster (UK) Ltd, in exchange for a bulk annuity
insurance policy to ensure that the assets (in the Company balance sheet and in the Scheme) will always be equal
to the current value of the hability of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007, thus removing the funding nsks for
these liabilities

Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund

The MNOPF Scheme Is an industry wide multi-employer defined benefit mutti-employer scheme in which officers
employed by companies within the Group have participated

The scheme 1s dwvided into two sections, the Old Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to new
members
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Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund (continued)

The Old Section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978 The Old Scheme completed a buy-out of all ts
members benefit obligations n July 2014, following which the Old Section was wound up Therefore, no further
liabiities were assigned to the Group in respect of the Old Scheme The Group could not identify its share of the
underlying assets and habilities of the Old Section on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore accounted
for contributions and payments to the Old Section under 1AS19 as if it were a defined contnbution scheme until the
scheme was wound up dunng the year

The most recent formal actuanal valuation of the New Section was carmed out as at 31 March 2015 This resulted
in a deficit of £3 milion The Trustee Board believe their nvestment strategy will address this deficit and therefore
has not 1ssued deficit contribution notices to employers in respect of the 2015 actuanal valuation

Following the valuation the Trustee and Employers have agreed contnbutions, in addition to those ansing from the
31 March 2003, 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2009 valuations, which will be paid to the Section by participating
employers over the period to 30 September 2023 These contnbutions include an allowance for the impact of
irrecoverable contributions in respect of comparies no longer in existence or not able to pay their share The
Group’s aggregated outstanding contributions from these valuahons are payable as follows 2016 £4 8 million, 2017
to 2020 £4 2 million per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0 8 milhon per annum

The Trustee set the payment terms for each participating employer in accordance with the Trustee’s Contribution
Collection Policy which includes credit vetting

The Group’s share of the net defict of the New Section at 31 December 2015 1s eshmated at § 33%
Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (“MNRPF"}

The Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (the “MNRPF Scheme”) 1s an industry wide multi-employer defined
benefit pension scheme n which sea staff employed by companies within the Group have participated The scheme
has a significant funding deficit and has been closed fo further benefit accrual

The most recent formal actuanal valuation was carned out as at 31 March 2014 The Group's deficit contributions
ansing from this valuation totalled £28 3 milion (equating to 7 3% share of the net deficit) Deficit contnbutions of £5
million were paid into the Scheme in 2015 Negotiations are ongoing for a repayment periad for the remaining £233
million defict, at which 6% pa interest will be charged

Certain Group companies, which are no longer current employers in the MNRPF had settled therr statutory debt
obligation and were not considered to have any legal obligation with respect to the on-going deficit in the fund
However, following a legat challenge, by Stena Line Limited, the High Court decided that the Trustees could require
all employers that had ever participated in the scheme to make contributions to fund the defict  Although the
Group appealed the decision, it was not overturned

The trustees notfied these Group companies of therr estmated share of current deficit dunng December 2012
equating to 3 0% The method of deficit allocation has still to be approved by the court However, based on this
inieal indication, the Group has provided for this habiity after an allowance for the impact of rrecoverable
contrbutions 1n respect of compantes no longer in existence or able to pay their share The net impact of £109
milion was reflected as an actuanal movement In the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income in
2012
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25.

Commitments

Capital commitments

£ mullion

2015 2014

Estimated cap:tal expenditure contracted for as at 31 December 2055 1354

Operating lease commitments
£ milion
Property Others

2015 2014 2015 2014

Within one year 468 423 592 722
Between cne and five years 188 1 1706 2209 2035
Between five and ten years 2224 1609 2650 2667
Between ten and twenty years 4137 204 1 2388 2433
Between twenty and thirty years 3521 1348 939 112
Between thirty and fifty years 1059 825 17 2 -
Between fifty and seventy years - - - -
1,328 1 7952 894 9 796 9

26

(a)

(b)
()

(d)

Contingent habihties

The Group has contingent labiittes amounting to £22 5 milion (2014 £252 million) in respect of
payment guarantees and £71 7 million (2014 £68 & million) in respect of performance guarantees and
ouistanding letters of credit 1ssued by the Group's bankers amounting to £0 5 milion {2014 £0 8 million)
The bank guarantees and letters of credit are ansing in the ordinary course of business from which it I1s
anticipated that no matenal liabilihes will anse

The Group has contingent habilities in respect of guarantees i1ssued on behalf of equity accounted
nvestees amounting to £11 7 milhon (2014 £3 4 milhion)

The Group through its 100% owned subsidiary Mundra Intemational Container Termma! Pnvate Limited
("MICT") has developed and 1s operating the contatner terminal at the Mundra port in Gujarat

In 2006, MICT received a show cause notice from Gujarat Mantime Board (*GMB™} requinng MICT to
demonstrate that the undertaking given by s parent company, P&O Ports (Mundra) Private Limited, with
regard to s shareholding in MICT has not been breached in view of P&0O Ports being taken over by the
Group GMB, MICT and Adant Ports and Special Economic Zone (*APSEZ"} have signed consent terms
accepting an amicable settlement of all disputes between the paries Presently steps are underway to
file the signed consent terms and withdraw the court proceedings

Chennat Port Trust "CPT™) had raised a demand for an amount of £12 2 million (2014 £12 2 million}
from Chennar Contawner Terminal Limited (*CCTL"), a subsidiary of the Company, on the basis that
CCTL had falled to fulfil its obligatrons In respect of non-transhipment containers for a penod of four
consecutive years from 1 December 2003 CCTL had subsequently paid £6 5 million (2014 £6 5 million}
under dispute n 2008 CCTL had initiated arbitration proceedings against CPT in this regard The
arbitral tnbunal passed its award on November 26, 2012 ruling in favour of CCTL However, CPT
appealed agamnst this order, which was upheld by Madras High Court on 8 January 2014 and
accordingly a provision has been recogmsed against the above recewvable CCTL lodged an appeal
before the Division Bench of Madras High Court along with a stay petitton on 31 January 2014 The
Appeal was taken up for heanng and admitted on 3 February 2014 CPT also made a statement before
the Court that no further action would be taken by CPT against CCTL The Court has admitted the
matter and 1s pending for final heanng and disposal before the Division Bench of Madras High Court
The Group is confident that the case will be in favour of CCTL
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27. Related parties

For the purpose of these consohdated financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group, if
the Group has the ability, dwrectly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant nfluence over it In
making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control or significant influence 1 e part of the same Parent Group

Related parties represent associated companies, shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the
Group, the Parent Company, Ulimate Parent Company and entities jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
such parties Pncing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management The
terms and conditions of the related party transactions were made on an arm’s length basis

Transactions with parent group

Amounts due from the parent group are disclosed sn note 16 interest earned on these loans amounted to £17 2
millon (2014 £159 million) Amounts due to the parent group are disclosed in note 20, these loans bear no
interest

Management fees of £12 3 million (2014 £8 6 million} were paid to DP World group companies during the year

Management fees of £1 4 million (2014 £1 8 million) were recewved from DP World group companies during the
year

There were no other transactions with the parent group during the year (2014 Nil)

Transactions with key management personne!

Given the operational and organisational structure of the Group, the key management personnel as defined
under 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ consists of the board of directors of the company together with the key
management personnel of DP Werld Limited

The Group’'s share of the remuneration of these key personnel was £4 8 million (2014 £3 8 million) of which £3 2
million (2014 £2 6 million) related to a share of the remuneration of the key management personnel of DP World
Limited

The remuneration of the key management personnel of DP World Limited and any relevant transactons are set
out in the financial statements of DP World Limited and which are publicly avallable on ther website at
www dpworld com

Other related party transactions
Duning the year the Group provided services including office accommodation and IT support to Istithmar P&O
Estates an affilated company, amounting to £0 3 million (2014 £0 8 million)

There are no other related party transactions during the year, (2014 Nil}

Parent entiies

The largest group of compames for which consolidated financial statements are prepared and in which the
company 1s consolidated under DP World Limited, a company limited by shares incorporated i Dubat, whose
accounts are filed with the Dubai International Financial Centre DP World Limited has 18 55% of its shares
traded on the NASDAQ Dubai

In the opinion of the directors the ultimate controlling parent undertaking as at 31 December 2015 was Port &
Free Zone World FZE, which owns 80 45% of DP World Limited Port & Free Zone World FZE 15 a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dubai World Corporation, which is the ulbmate parent company of the Company, but which does not
exent control over the Company
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28 Business combination
2015

{1} Acquisitions of new subsidianes

On 18 August 2015, the Group has acquired 100% ownership of Maher Terminal's Fairview Container Terminal
(Fairview) in Pnnce Rupert (DP World Pnnce Rupert In¢ ), Bntish Columbra, Canada from Deutsche Bank for a
total consideration of £ 288 9 m (cash acquired on acquisition £ 1 3 m} The carrying value and far value of the
identfiable assets and habilites on the date of the acquisitton were as follows

Farir value
Acquiree's
carrying amount recoagc:'jlesilg:
£'m £'m
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 232 232
Port concession nghts - 2545
Accounts recevables and prepayments 12 112
Inventories 12 12
Bank balances and cash 13 13

Liabilities
Penston and post-employment benefits (0 8) (0 8)
Income tax labiliies (11) {11)
Deferred tax liabilities (14) (67 5}
Accounts payable and accruals (6 4) (64)
Net assets 272 2156
Goodwill arising on acquisition 733
Total cost of acquisition 2889
287 4

Net cash outflow on acquisition {net of cash acquired)

From the date of acquisition, Fairview has contnibuted a loss of £ 1 4m to the Group If the acquisition had taken
place at the beginming of the year, the profit of the Group would have increased by £ 8 4m and revenue would
have increased by £ 41 5m

2014

In September 2014, DPW Group acquired 57% stake in Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S A (REPASA), a
Spanish operator of offshore support vessels for the energy industry for £7 3 million

This acquisition has resulted in recognition of Goodwill of £1 6m

From the date of acquisition, Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S A has contnbuted revenue of £3 9m and loss
of £1 1m If the acquisiion had taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue would have been £9 9m and
loss would have been £2 9m

{i  Acquisttions without change of control

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired the remaming 49% of non-controlling nterest In Southampton
Container Terminals Limited for a constderation of £38 8 mulkon, resulting in a gain of £10 5 millon which has
been recorded in equity, as there has not been any change in control
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29 Financial instruments

{a) Credit nsk
1) Exposure to credit nsk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to

credit nsk at the reporting date was

£ million

Carmying amount Carrying ameount

2015 2014

Trade recevables 867 M7
Other receivables 1096 1039
Amounts owed by group companies 2,6201 26235
Cash and cash equivalents 269 4 2492
Debt securities held-to-matunty 51 55
64 3 517

Lean to equity accounted investees

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for trade recewvables at the reporting date by geographical region 1s as

follows
£ milhon
2016 2014
Europe and Afnca 420 379
Australia and Americas 338 251
Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent 108 87
867 717
(1) Credif quality of financial assets and impairment losses
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables dunng the year was
£ mullien
2015 2014
At 1 January 13 18
Reversed during the year (0 5)
At 31 December 13 13
The ageing of trade recevables at the reporing date was
£ million
2015 2014
Neither past due or impaired 515 492
Past due on the reporting date
Past due less than 30 days 232 157
Past due 31-60 days 77 31
Past due over 60 days 43 37
867 77

(b} Liqundity nsk

The following are the contractual matunties of financial iabilthies, including estimated interest payments and

excluding the impact of neting agreements
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

{b) Liquidity nsk (continued)

2015 One to Two to More than
Carrying Contractual Within one two five five
amount cash flows year years years years
Non-denvative financial habihties
Trade and other payables {211 7) (271 7} {251 6) (201) - -
Unsecured bond i1ssues 54) {10 3) (0 4) (0 4) (13) (82)
Secured bank loans {715 8) (993 8) (66 9) (63 1) {285 4) {578 4)
Unsecured loans and bank loans (358 7) (404 0) {39 8} (38 0) (312 3) {(139)
Finance lease labities {18 3} (24 5) (6 2) {5 3) {7 6) (5 4)
Mortgage debenture stock {14} 27) 01 {0 1) {0 1) (2 4)
Unsecured loan (77 (77) (77 - - -
Financial guarantees and Letter of Credit - (106 4) - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (net outflow) (54 3) (105 3) (18 9) {17 4) (43 2) {25 8)
(1,4333) (1,926 4) {391 6) (144 4) (649 9) (634 1)
£ milhen
2014 Ona to Two to More than
Carrying Contractual Within one two five five
amount cash flows ysar years years yoars
Non-derivative financial habilittes
Trade and cther payables (253 8) (253 8} (235 9) (17 9) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues (51} (10 2) (0 4) (0 4) {(12) (8 2)
Secured bank Ioans (613 9) (768 4) (56 9) 510 (214 4) (446 1)
Unsecured bank loans (314 0) (353 8) {32 9) (39 4) (243 0) (38 5)
Finance lease habilties {20 5) (27 8) {6 3) {(50) (11 6) (57)
Mortgage debenture stock (14) (2 5) - - [V} {(24)
Unsecured loan stock (63) 63 {6 3} - - -
Financial guarantees and Letter of Credit - (97 9) - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (net outflow) (63 5) (88 7) (19 3} (15 9) (38 9) (14 6)
(1,2785) (1,609 2) (357 ) (129 6) (509 2) (515 5)
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29 Financial instruments (continued)
(c} Market nsk
(1) Currency nsk

The following sigruficant exchange rates were applied dunng the year

Average rates Reporting date spot rates
— 2015 2014 2015 2014
usb 1528 1646 1482 1559
EUR 1377 1241 1361 1285
AUD 2035 1827 2026 1904
INR 97 996 100 464 98 092 98 247
CAD 1954 1818 2057 1807

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10 per cent strengthening of pound stering against the following currencies at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 would have increasedf{decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This
analysis assumes that all other vanables, in particular interest rates, remain constant Further, as each entity in
the Group determines its own functiona! currency, the effects of translating financial assets and habiliies of the

respective entity would mainly impact equity

2015 Emilllon
Cansolidated statement Consclidated statement
of OCI of income
uso 130 114
EUR 11 {0 15)
AUD (19) -
INR 81 023
CAD 19 024
2014 £ million
Equity Incorne Statement
uso 134 09
EUR 06 (02
AUD {10 -
INR 22 g2
CAD 43 03

A 10% per cent weakeming of pound stering aganst the above currencies at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown

above, on the basis that all other vanables remain constant
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

{c) Market nsk (continued)

() interest rate nsk

At the reparting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest beanng financial instruments was

£ million
Carmyng amount Carrying amount
2015 2014
Fixed Rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financia! habilites 619) (606)
Interest rate swaps hedging floating rate debt (914 7) (723 6)
(976 6) (784.2)
Yariable rate instruments
Financial assets 2,788 7 27122
Financial liabilines (1,045 4) (900 6)
Interest rate swaps hedging floating rate debt 914 7 7236
2,658.0 2,5352
The group has hedged its exposure to vanable rates by entering 1nto fixed interest rate swaps for a noticnal
amount equivalent to £914 70 mifhon (2014 £723 60 million)
interest rate sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points ("bp”) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/{decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that alt other vanables, in
particular foreign currency exchange rates, remamn constant
£ mullion

Tncome statement

100bp increase 100bp decrease 10Cbp mcrease 100bp decrease

31-Dec-15

Vanable rate instruments 266 (26 6) - -
Interest rate swaps 01 {(01) 91 Q1)
Cash flow sensitivity net 267 (26.7) 91 9.1}
31-Dec-14

Vanable rate instruments 254 254) - -
Interest rate swaps i1 (1) 72 (72
Cash flow sensitivity net 26.5 (26.5) 72 (7.2)
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29 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilthes

The table below presents the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group’s financial assets and habilities at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

£ mulhon
2015 2014
Eook value Fair value Book valun Falr valus

Primary financial assets and liabtlities held or issued to finance the Group’s operations
Trade and cther receivables 196 3 196 3 1758 1758
Trade and other payables (271 7) (271 7) (253 8) (253 8}
Unsecured bond 1ssues (54) (5 4) {(51) (51}
Secured bank loans (715 8) (715 8) 613 9) {613 9)
Unsecured bank foans {358 7) (358 7) (314 0) {314 0)
Finance lease habilities (18 3) (18 3) {20 5) (20 5)
Mortgage debenture stock (14) 14) {(14) {14)
Amounts owed by group undertakings 26201 26201 26235 26235
Amounts owed to group undertakings (343 6) (343 6) {81 1) (61 1)
Amounts owed by equity accounted investees 643 543 517 87
Cash and cash equivalents 269 4 269 4 2492 2492
zgnda::)cgzl assets held at fair value through profit 242 24 2 242 242
Debt secunties held-to-maturnty 51 51 55 55
Denivative financial itnstruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile
Interest rate swap - habilities (54 3) (54 3) (63 5) (83 5)
Cash flow sensitivity net 1,410 2 1,410 2 1,796 6 1,796 6

The following valuation methods have been used for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

The farr value of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximates to the book value due to
the short term matunty of these instruments

The fair value of non-converiible bonds and dollar notes included in loans above is based on the quoted market
price of comparable debt Other loans include term loans and finance leases These are largely at vanable
interest rates and therefore the book value normally equates to the fair value

The fair value of debt secunties held-to-matunty 15 based on the quoted market value of similar assets The far
value of other investments 1s based on the year-end quoted price for listed investments and the estmated
recoverable amount for unlisted investments The fair value of cash and bank overdrafts approximates to the
book value due to the short term matunity of the instruments The farr value of denvative financial Instruments 1s
based on the cash flows discounted to the net present vatue using prevaling market rates and foreign currency
rates at the reporting date
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23 Financial instruments (continued)

{d) Farr value of financial assets and habiities (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments camed at fair value, by valuation method The different levels
have been defined as follows
e lLevel 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o« Level 2 mputs other than quoted pnces included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or
hability, either directly (s @ as prices) or indirectly (1 e denved from pnces)

+ Level 3 inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs)

£ million

Love! 1 Level 2 Level 3
2015
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss - - 24 2
Debt secunties held-to-matunty - 51 -
Mortgage debenture stocks - (0 8) -
Dernvative financial habilities - (54 3) -
- {50 0) 242
2014
Financial assets held at fair valve through prefit and loss - - 242
Debt securittes held-to-maturity - 55 -
Mortgage debenture stocks - (08} -
Derivative financial rabritres - {63 5) -
- (58 9) 242
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30 Significant group entities

The extent of the Group’s ownership n its various subsidsaries, associates and jomnt ventures and

their principal activities are as follows

Subsidianes

Chennai Contaner Terminat Private Ltd

DP World Antwerp NV
DP World Callao S A
DP World (Canada) Inc

DP World Austraha {POSN) Pty Ltd
DP World Qverseas Pty Limited

DP World Maputo S A

Mundra International Container Termunal Private Limited

Country of
incorporation

India
Belgium
Peru
Canada
Australia
Australia
Mozambique
India

Nhava Sheva International Container Terminal Private Ltd India

P&0 Maritime Services Pty Ltd
P&0O Mantime Services (PNG) Ltd

Qasim International Container Terminal Pakistan Ltd
Saigon Premier Contaner Terminal
Southampton Container Terminals Ltd

Terminales Rio de la Plata SA
London Gateway Port Limited
DP World Prince Rupert Inc

Associates
Antwerp Gateway NV

Laem Chabang International Terminat Co Ltd

Eurofos SARL

Generale de Manutention Portuaire S A
Qingdao Qianwan Contaner Terminal Co Lid

Astan Terminals Inc

Portus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos Portuanos Ltd

Joint Ventures

PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya

Australa
Papua New
Guinea

Pakistan
Vietnam
England
Argentina
England
Canada

Belgium
Thatland
France
France

China
Philippines

UAE

Indonesta

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
60%
100%
100%
100%
100%

55%
80%
100%

55 62%

100%
100%

60%"
34 5%
50% #
50% #
20% #

41 72%

48 5%

49%

Percentage of
equity share
capital owned Business description

Container terminal operations
Contamner terminal and other
Container terminal eperations
Container terminals and stevedornng
Holding Company

Holding Company

Container terminal operations
Container terminal operations
Container terminal operations

Port and mantime services

Port and mantime services

Container termuinat operations
Container terminal operations
Contamner terminal operations
Contamer terminal operations
Contaner terminal operations
Contamner terminal operations

Container terminal cperations
Container terminal operations
Container terminal operations
Container terminal operations

Container terminal operations
Container terminal operations

Holding company

Container terminal operattons

* Although the Group has more than 60% effective ownership interest in this entity, 1t 1s not treated as a subsidiary, but instead
treated as an equity accounted nvestee The underlying shareholder agreement does not provide sigmificant control to the

Group

# Reflects economic interest
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At 31 December 2015

£ million

Note 2016 2014

Non-currant assets
Tangible fixed assets E 70 73

Investments In subsidianes F 1,601 9 1,527 4
Other investments F 238 238
4,632.7 1,558 5

Current assetls
Debtors G 35085 35425
Cash and cash equivalents 22 35

3,6107 3,546 0

Creditors: amounts falling due within one ysar
Other creditors | (5466) (1,0869)

(646.6) (1,088 9)

Net current assets 2,964.1 2,459 1

Total agsets lass current llabllities 4,696.8 40176

Creditors: amounts falllng due In more than one year

Creditors amotnts faling due in more than one year | (G 6) -
Loans H (6 8) {6 5)

(7.4) €95
Provisions for liabilities J (110) (11 0}

Net assets before penslon liabilities 4578.4 4.000 1
J M 3

Pansions and post-retirement benefits N (88 1) (95 3)

Net assets after pension liabilltles 4,480 3 3.904 8

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital K (843 2) (843 2)

Share premium account L (815 4) (815 4)
Profit and loss account L (2,8317) (2.2462)
Total equlty (4,490.3)  (3.804 8)

hg accounts were approved by a duly authonsed commiltee of th -Board of directors and signed on iis behalf

Sarmad Qureshi
Director
THe Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawvigalion Gompany ~ Company Number Z73
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£ mullion
Share Share Other Retained Total

capital premum  reserve earnings Equity
Balance as at 1 January 2014 {revised) 8432 8154 - 2,2787 39383
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - a7n a7n
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax - - - (31 8) {318)
Totai comprehensive income - - - (33 5) (33 5)
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity - - - - -
-Dividends - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 8432 8154 - 2,246 2 3,9048
At 1 January 2015 8432 8154 - 2,246 2 3,904 8
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year 5920 5920
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax (6 5) (6 5}
Total comprehensive income - - - 5855 5855
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
-Divdends - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 843 2 8154 - 28317 4,490 3
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A. Accounting Policies
The Peninsular and Onental Steam Navigaton Company (the 'Company) I1s a company incorporated and
domiciled in the UK

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
matenat in relation te the accounts of the Company except as noted below

Basis of Preparation
First time application of FRS 100 and FRS 101

In the current year the Company has adopted FRS 100 and FRS 101 The financial statements have been
prepared under the histoncat cost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006 |n previous years the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with apphcable UK accounting standards

In the transition to FRS 101, the Company has applied IFRS 1 whilst ensuring that its assets and liabilities are

measured in comphance with FRS 101  An explanation of how the transitton to FRS 101 has affected the

reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company 1s provided in note Q There

have been no matenal amendments to the disclosure requirements previously applied 1in accordance with

previous UK GAAP The change in basis of preparation has enabled the Company to take advantage of all of the

availlable disclosure exemptions permitted by FRS 101 in the financial statements, which are summanzed below
»  Cash Flow Statement and related notes,

Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries,

Disclosures in respect of capital management,

The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,

Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel, and

Disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel

services to the company

As the consolidated financial statements of DP World Limited (intermediate parent undertaking’) include the
equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 availlable n respect of
certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financial Instrument Disclosures

Information on the impact of first-time adoption of FRS 1011s given in note Q

The Company proposes to continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 n its next financial
statements

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company 15 exempt from the requirement to present its own
profit and loss account

Going concern

The directors, having made enquines, consider that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence from 12 months of the date of approval of financial statement and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concemn basis in prepanng the accounts

Functional currency and fareign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company 1s stering All financtal information presented in Sterling s rounded to
the nearest milion Transaction in fareign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of
the transaction

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date and exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the iIncome statement

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at histoncal cost are translated to the functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction and i1s not retranslated at a later dale Non-
monetary items that are measured at far value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
usmng the exchange rates at the date when the farr value was determined

Foreign currency differences ansing on retranslation of monetary items are recogrised in the statement of profit
or loss, except for differences ansing on the retranslation of avaiable-for-sale equity Instruments, of a financial
habity designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which
are recogrised directly in statement of other comprehensive income
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A. Accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any prowvision for impairment Assets
constructed by the Company are depreciated from the date that the assets are available for use

Provision for any impairment in value of other fixed assets 1s made in the profit and loss account

Depreciation 15 calculated to write off the cost of these assets to estimated residual value, on a straight line basis
over the expected useful Iife of the asset concemed The expected useful ives of property and other fixed assets
(reported within plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings) vary up to 40 years

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows

Assets Useful hife (years)
Buildings 5-40
Plant and Machinery 3-25
Fixtures & Fittings 3-25

Interest incurred in respect of assets under construction 1s capitalised into the cost of the asset concerned
Investment 1n subsidiaries
Invesiment in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Other investments

Other investments in debt and equity secunties held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale
and are stated at far value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, except for
impairment losses and, in the case of monetary items such as debt secunties, foreign exchange gans and
losses When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity 1s
recognised in profit or loss Where these investments are interest-beanng, interest calculated using the effective
interest method 1s recognised in profit or loss

The fair value of financial iInstruments classified as available-for-sale 1s their quoted bid-price at the balance sheet
date Avallable-for-sale investments are recognised/derecognised by the Company on the date it commits to
purchase/sell the investments Secunties held-to-matunty are recognised/derecogmised on the day they are
transferred to/by the Company The Company does not hold invesiments in debt or equity secunties for trading
purposes

Trade debtors and other recervables

Short term debtors are measured at transaction pnce, less any impairment Loans and receivables are financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market Subsequent to ntial
recognition at fair value, loans and recewables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis compnse cash in hand, bank balances and deposits

Loans
Interest-bearnng borrowings are recognised inihally at fair value less attributable transaction costs Subsequent to

initial recogmitton, interest-beanng borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses
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A. Accounting policies (continued)

Creditors

Creditors are cbligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers Creditors are recogrised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method

Provisions

A provision is recognised In the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and where the amount of the associated costs can be reliably estimated [f the effect 1s matenal,
provisions are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money, and where appropnate the nsks specific to the lability

A provision for onerous contracts 1s recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

Leases

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as finance leases These ieases include Land and bulldings which are financed by leasing agreements, giving
rights approximating to ownership are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at cost less accumulated depreciation

On initial recognition, the leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the mimimum lease payment Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased asset 1s accounted for
in accerdance with the accounting pohcy applicable to that asset Mimimum lease payments made under finance
leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding hability The finance
expense 1s allocated to each penod dunng the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaiming balance of the lability

Leases where the Company does not retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are

classified as operating leases In operating lease, rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the term of the lease

Pensions and post-retirement benefits

Defined contnibution plans
A defined contribution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contnbution to
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Contnbutions, including
lump sum payments, in respect of defined coninbution pension schemes and multi-employer defined benefit
schemes where 1t 1s not possible to tdentify the Company’s share of the scheme, are charged to the profit and
loss account as they fall due

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnbution plan
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A Accounting policies (continued)

Pensions and post-retirement benefits (continued)

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan
by estmatmg the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for thew service In the current
and pnor penods That benefit 1s discounted to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets 15 deducted The calculation 1s performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method The discount rate 1s the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have matunty dates
approximating to the terms of the Company’s obligations

When the actuanal calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset 1s Imited to the present
value of economic benefits available i the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contnbutions to the plan In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration I1s given to
any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Company An economic benefit is available to
the Company if it 1s realisable duning the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabiliies

Where the present value of the deficit coninbutions exceeds the IAS 19 deficit an additional liability 1s
recognised

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which compnse of actuanal gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceidling (f any, excluding interest) are recognised
directly in statement of other comprehensive income The Company determines the net interest expense
(iIncome) on the net defined benefit lability (asset) for the penod by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit labiity (asset) dunng the penod as result of
contnbutions and benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recogrised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtalled, the resulting change in benefit that refates to
past service or the gatn or loss on curtaiment 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss The Company recognise
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement cccurs

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrymng amount of the asset may not be recoverable If any such indication
exists, the asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated

An imparment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its income-generating unit
exceeds Its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account

The recoverable amount of assels |s the greater of their net realisable value and value in use In assessing value
in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the rate of return expected on an equally nsky investment For an asset
that does not generate largely independent income streams, the recoverable amount i1s determined for the
income-generating unit o which the asset belongs

For assets where the recoverable amount increases as a result of a change in economic conditions or in the
expected use of the asset then the resultant reversal of the imparrment loss should be recogrused in the current
penod

An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, If no impairment loss had been
recogrised
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Financral guarantees

This 1s where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of
subsidianes, joint ventures or associates The Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and
accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent lability
untl such ime as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income,
in which case it 1s recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years

Deferred tax 1s prowvided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for
financia) reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences
are not provided for the initial recognition of assets or liabifities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidianes to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of defemred tax provided 1s based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utiised

B. Audit fees

The Company's audit fee paid to its pnncipal auditors, KPMG LLP was £30,000 (2014 £30,000), and non-audit
fee was £131,792 (2014 £100,000)

C. Dividends

On 31 March 2016, the Company declared a dividend of £1,000,000,000 {2014 £nid) This has not been
recogrised as a hability in 2015

D. Profit for the financial year

The profit for the financial year, being the profit on ordinary activities after taxation, was £592 0 million (2014 loss
of £1 7 milhon)
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£ milion £ million £ million £ milhen £ million
Land and Plant and Fixture & Under Total
Fittings
Building machinery, construction
Cost
At t January 2015 57 05 26 - 88
Additions 00 01 02 03
At 31 December 2015 57 05 27 02 91
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 (02) 02 a1 - (15
Charge for the year o2 o1 (0 3) - (08)
At 31 December 2015 (0 4) 03) {14} 21)
Net book amount at 31 Decemnber 2015 53 02 13 02 70
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 55 03 16 _ 73
F. Investments
Investments investments Total
In subsichary n unlisted
companies companies
At beginning of year 22725 238 2,296 3
Additions / (increases) 957 - 957
At 31 Decernber 2015 2,368 2 238 23920
Provisions
At beginning of year (745 1) - (745 1)
Charge for the year {21 2) - (212)
At 31 December 2015 (766 3) - (766 3)
Net Investment at 31 December 2015 1,6019 238 1,6257
Net Investment at 31 December 2014 1,527 4 238 1,5512

Additions to investment in subsidiary companies dunng the year relates to acquisiion of 100% stake in Maher
Terminal's Fairview through P&0 Dover (Holding Ltd) of £56 9 million and acquisition of remaiming 49% of non-
controlling interest in Southampton Container Terrminals Limited for a consideration of £38 8 million

Provisions dunng the year represents additional impairment of investment in P&0 Property Intemational Ltd on

account of reduction in carrying value of the company as at 31 December 2015
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F. Investments (continue)

The following are subsidiary undertakings of the Company

Subsichary undertakings

Beaufort Insurance Company Limited

Bntish India Steam Nawvigation Company Limited
DP World (POSN) BV

DP World Australia (POSN) Pty Ltd

DP World Investments FZE

DP World Limited

DP World Mantime B Vv

DP World Red BV

Linfire Limited

London Gateway Limited

Lenden Gateway Park Development Limited
London Gateway Park Limited

London Gateway Park Management Limited
London Gateway Port Holdings Limited
London Gateway Services Limited

P&0O Bulk Shipping Limited

P&Q Delaware Holdings LLC

P&0 Dover {Holdings) Limited

P&Q Pension Funds Investments Limited
P&O Ports Ltd

P&0 Properties International Limited

P&0O Scottish Fernes Limited

P&O Tankships Investments Limited
Partkestrel Limited

POETS Fleet Management Limited
Southampton Container Terminals Limited

Investments in unlisted companies

The investment mn unhisted companies represents a 3 15% ownership holding of DP World Australia (Holding) Pty
Ltd Investment in unhsted companies are classified as being availlable-for-sale The unlisted investment 1s
measured at cost instead of fair value as the investment do not have a quoted market price in an active market

Country of
incorporation

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Netherlands
Austraha

United Arab
Emirates
United Kingdomn
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

and for which a fair value cannot be reliably measured
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Percentage of
share capital
owned by the

Company

100 00%

100 00%
94 00%
100 00%
100 00%

100 00%
94 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
49 00%

Class of shares

Ordinary shares and Preference

shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary-B shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary-B shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Qrdinary shares
Qrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Qrdinary shares
A shares
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F. Investments (continue)

The following subsidianies have elected the audit exemption (section 479A of the Companies Act 2006) where the
parent company (The Peninsular and Cnental Steam Navigation Company ZC000073) has provided a guarantee
as at the date of signing these financial statements for all habilities owing by the respective entities for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Company Registered
number
Abbott & Goldman 0094899
British India Steam Navigation Company Limited 0000133
DP World Limited 6291123
European Fernes Limited 00301725
P&O Bulk Shipping Lirmited 00258949
P&O Dover (Holdings) Limited 03492979
P&0O Overseas Holdings Limited 00537728
P&QO Ports Limited 00751061
P&0 Properties Internatonal Limited 01099229
P&Q Scottish Ferrnes Limited 00071375
P&O Scottish Fernes Ship Management Limited $C10350
P&O Tankships investments Limited 21695
Partkestrel Limited 01824258
Poets Fleet Management Limited 161443
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G. Debtors

£ million

2015 Falling due
wiathin one year

2014 Falling due

within one year

Trade Debtors 28 19
Cther recewvables 61 76
Prepayments and accrued income 48 131
Corporation tax - 31
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,494 8 356168

3,508 5§ 35425

H. Loans
2015 2014
Creditors falling due more than one year
US doltar bonds 2027 (unsecured) 54 51
Mortgage debentures stocks 14 14
68 65
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Currency Nominal Year of Face Carrying Face Carrying
interest matunty  value amount value amount
rate
2015 2015 2014 2014
US dollar bonds 2027 {unsecured) usoD 79 2027 54 54
Mortgage debentures stocks GBP 35 Undated 14 14
68 68 65
I. Creditors
£ milkon
2015 Falling due 2014 Falling due
In more In more
than one than one
within one year year Total within one year year Total
Amounts owed to subsidianes 534 8 - 534 8 1.0735 - 1,0735
Socizl secunty and other
taxation 39 - 39 11 - 11
Other unsecured creditors 38 - 38 75 - 75
Accruals and deferred income 40 06 47 48 - 48
546 5 06 547 2 1,086 9 - 1,086 9
546 5 06 547 2 1,086 9 - 1,086 9

88




Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

J. Provisions for liabilities

P&0O Annual Report

£ million

Other

Provisions

At 1 January 2015 110
At 31 December 2015 10

Prowisions include £8 3 million (2014 £8 3 million) in respect of exposures arising from former employees
working in environments that used to contain asbestos Liabilities expected to be incurred are in part covered by

nsurance Any expected recoveries are included withun other receivables

Amounts released to the income statement duning the year were in respect of interest receivable on the loan to

an associate which was written off in the penod

K. Share capital

The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital 1s as follows

£ mullion
2015 2014
Issued share capital (843 2 mithon ordinary shares of £1 each) 843 2 8432
L. Reserves
£ million
Share Profit and Total
premium loss
account account
At 1 January 2015 8154 2,246 2 30616
Actuanal gains - (6 5) (6 5}
Profit for the financial year - 5920 59820
At 31 December 2015 8154 28317 3,647 1

Share capital and share premum account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account include the tota! net proceeds on issue of

the Company's equity share capital (see note K)
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Profit and loss account
Exchange movements in the profit and loss account include a gain of £23 8 milion (2014 £25 8 million gamn} In
respect of foreign currency net lendings

M. Directors’ emoluments

£ thousand
2015 2014
Directors' emoluments 1,510 1,500
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 86 64
1,596 1,564

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under
2045 2014
Defined benefit schemes - -
Money purchase schemes 1 1
1 1

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £1,140,147 and no pension contnbution was made
on his behalf {2014 The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £484,000 and no pension
contnibution was made on his behalf)

In 2015 £492,147 (2014 £330,000) was paid to directors in respective of a long term incentive plan

g0




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions

The Company participates in three funded UK defined benefit pension schemes and a Company Personal
Pension arrangement The prncipal scheme, the P&0O Pension Scheme (the “P&0 UK Scheme”), was closed to
routine new members on 1 January 2002 The pension fund s legally separated from the Company and
managed by a Trustee Board The assets of the scheme are managed on behalf of the Trustee by independent
fund managers

The Company also participates in the Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund (the “MNOPF Scheme”) and the
Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (the “MNRPF scheme”) which are industry wide schemes These
generally have assets held in separate trustee administered funds which are legally separated from the
Company

The board of a pension fund In the UK 15 required by law to act in the best interests of the fund participants and 1s
responsible for setting certain policies {e g investment, contributions and indexation policies) and determining
recovery plans If appropnate These defined benefit funds expose the Company to actuanal nsks, such as
longewity nisk, currency nsk, interest rate nsk and market (nvestment} nisk In addiion, by participating in certain
mutti-employer industry schemes the Company can be exposed to a pro-rata share of the credit nisk of other
participating employers

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

2015 2014
Present value of obligations (1,444 5) (1,506 0)
Fair value of plan assets 1,356 4 14107
Net hability deficit (88 1) (95 3}
Related deferred tax asset - -
Net hability 8g1) {95 3)
Amounts n the balance sheet
Non-current Liabitties (88 1) (95 3)
Net liability (88 1) (95 3)

The deferred pension benefit schemes of GBP £88 1 million (2014 £95 3 mullion) 15 in respect of the total

Company schemes shown on page 94

The re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability recognised in the statement of other comprehensive

income 1s as follows

2015 2014

Actuanal (gan)floss recognised in the year {45 1) 102 2
Return on plan assets lesser/ (greater) than the discount rate 394 (91 3)
Change in share in multi-employer scheme (0 6) 172
Movement in minimum funding liability 128 37
65 318
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The pension costs for defined benefit schemes are as follows

2015 2014
Current service cost 03 (03)
Gam due to settlements/curtaliments 06 -
Administration costs (25) (6
Total charge to operating profit (22) 9
Net Interest on net defined benefit hability/{asset) (30) (27)
Total expenses recognised in the income statement (5 2) (46)

Actuanal valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2015 by qualfied
independent acluanes The pnncipal assumptions are included in the table below

The assumptions used by the actuanes are the best estmates chosen from a range of possible actuanal
assumptions, which, due to the timescale covered, may not necessanly be borne out in practice There are
ongoing discussions with Trustees in regards to deficit recovery plans

P30 UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme MNRPF Scheme
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rates 370% 360% 370% 360% 3 70% 3 60%
Chscount rates - Bulk Annuity Asset 350% 3 35% nla nfa nfa n/a
Expected rates of salary increases nfa 250% nia nfa nfa nfa
Pension increases
- Deferment 2 80% 2 80% 2 20% 215% 220% 2 15%
- Payment 2 80% 2 80% 3 10% 305% 310% 3 05%
- payment Bulk Annuity 2 75% 275% nfa nfa nia nfa
Inflation 320% 315% 3.20% 315% 3 20% 315%
Inflation - Bulk Annuity Asset 310% 310% n/a nfa n/a n/a
Expected rates of return on scheme assets n/a nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa

From 1 December 2011, changes have been made to the benefits provided by the P&0 UK scheme These
include a restnction to pay increases equal to the lower of Retail Price Index and 2 5% in a Scheme Year This
restriction 1s reflected in the pay increase assumption above and there 1s no allowance for promotional
increases The P&C UK Scheme was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015, so future pay increases
will no longer be relevant after this date

The assumptions for penstoner longevity under both the P&0O UK scheme and the MNOPF scheme are based
on an analysis of penstoner death trends under the respective schemes over many years

The schemes’ strategic asset aflocations across the sectors of the main asset classes are
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P&0 UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme MNRPF Schemes Totat Falr value
£'million E'million £'milhon £'million

2015
Equities 3026 404 55 3485
Bonds 1191 694 204 2089
Other 205 - 102 307
Value of insured pensioner hability 768 3 - - 768 3
1,210 5 1098 361 1,356 4

2014
Equities 3175 361 54 3590
Bonds 116 2 665 201 2028
Other 193 - 78 271
Value of insured pensicner Lability 8218 - - 8218
1,274 8 1026 333 14107

With the exception of the insured pensioner liability all matena!l nvestments have quoted pnces In active
markets

For illustration, the hife expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and in the future are detaited in the
table below

Male Female
Age 65 now Age 65 in 20 years' time Age 65 now CS:rs'GZmlg 20

2015

P&0O UK scheme 234 265 258 289
MNRPF scheme 207 233 261 288
MNOPF scheme 227 256 263 293
2014

P&0 UK scheme 233 263 256 287
MNRPF scheme 213 240 24 1 267
MNOPF scheme 226 254 262 292

At 31 December 2015 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 15 8 years (2014 16
years)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant (n
practice, this 1s unhkely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated), would have
increased the net defined benefit liability as at 31 December 2015 by the amounts shown below

£ mifhont
0 1% reduction in discount rate 90
0 1% increase in inflation assumption and related assumptions 37
0 25% p a increase 0 the long term rate of mortalty improvement 58

The methods and type of assumptions used in prepanng sensitvity analysis did not change compared to the
previous penrod
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At 31 December 2015 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 15 8 years (2014 16

years)

Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and farr value of scheme

assets for the penod ended 31 December 2015

£ mulion

P&0O UK Scheme  MNOPF Scheme sl\:l: :::15 Total

Present value of obligation at 1 January 2015 (1,328 6) {117 6} {53 5) (1,499 7)
Current service cost {0 3) - - {0 3)
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (46 6) {3 8) {19) (52 3)
Past service cost - amendments/curtailments {02) - - {02)
Settlement of habilities 90 - - 90
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actuanal gan/(loss) - expenence 233 40 {15} 258
Actuanal gain/(loss) - demographic assumptions - - 08 03
Actuanal gain/{loss) - financial assumptions 166 12 07 185
Gain/(Loss) due to ¢change in share - - 24 24
Actual benefit paid 640 49 19 708
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2015 (1,262 8) (111 3) (51 1) (1,425 2)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274 9 1026 332 14107
Interest income on assets 448 34 13 495
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate (437) 31 11 (39 5)
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate - - - -
Actual employer contnbutions 86 57 45 188
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actual benefit paid {64 0) (47) {19} (70 6)
Gain/(Loss) due to change in share - - {18} (18)
Settlement (84) - - (84)
Administration costs ncurred dunng penod 1N (03) {03) (23)
';‘:"D‘fc'::’nif;::';e assets at 1,210 5 1098 361 1,356 4
Irrecoverable surplus at 1 January 2015 - (63) - {63)
Interest cost on recoverable surplus - 02 - 02
Change in rrecoverable surplus - (80) (48) {128)
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2015 - {14 5) (48) {18 3)
Defined benefit schemes net liabilities at 31 December (523) (16 0) (19 8) (88 1)

2015
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Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme

assets for the penod ended 31 December 2014

£ million

P&0O UK Scheme  MNOPF Scheme SN‘I: ::r:: Total
Present value of obligation at 1 January 2014 (1,251 2) (94 Q) (21 0) (1,366 2)
Current service cost (03} - - {03
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (53 0} 40) 09) (57 9)
Past service cost - amendments/curtailments - - - -
Settlement of habilities - - - -
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actuanal gain/{loss) - expenence 85 01 02 88
Actuanal gain/(loss) - demographic assumptions (18) - - (18)
Actuanal gain/(loss) - financial assumptions (97 5) {9 3) (24) (109 2)
Gain/(Loss) due to change i share - (14 6) {30 5) (45 1}
Actual benefit paid 667 42 11 720
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2014 {1,328 6) {117 6) (53 5} (1,499 7)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2014 1,206 7 758 151 1,287 6
Interest iIncome on assets 512 33 o7 552
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate 762 132 20 914
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate - - - -
Actual employer contrbutions 86 34 - 120
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actual benefit pad {66 7) (40 (11} (71 8)
Gam/(Loss) due to change in share - 111 168 279
Settlement - - - -
Administration costs incurred during penod (12) {02) {(02) (16)
';"D":;:;:Zf;::;“e assets at 1,274 8 1026 333 14107
irrecoverable surplus at 1 January 2014 - (2 5) - {(25)
Interest cost on irrecoverable surplus - (0 1) - o1
Change in irecoverable surplus - (37) - 37
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2014 - 63) - (63)
Defined benefit schemes net habilities at 31 December (53 8) @13) (202) (95 3)

2014
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Where a surplus anses on a scheme, in accordance with IAS19 and IFRIC14, the surplus 1s recognised as an
asset only f it represents an uncondiional economic benefit available to the Company in future Any surplus in
excess of this benefit 1s not recognised in the statement of financial position A miimum funding hability anses
where the siatutory funding requirements are such that future coninbutions In respect of past service will result in a
future unrecognisable surplus

The below table shows the movement in mimmum funding hability -

£ million
2015 2014
Minimum funding liability as on 1 January (63) (25)
Interest cost on minimum funding Nability (02) 01
Actuanal movement during the year (12 8) (37)
Effect of movement in exchange rates B i
Minimum funding liability as on 31 December (193) {63)

Itis anticipated that the company will make the following contributions to the pension schemes in 2016

£ milhon
P80 UK Scheme MNOPF MNRPF Total
Scheme Scheme

Pension scheme contrnibutions 84 33 15 132

P&0O UK Scheme

Formal actuanal valuations of the P&0O UK Scheme are normally carmed out tnenmally by qualified independent
actuanes, the latest completed regular valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 2013, using the
projected unit credit method

In December 2007, as part of a process developed with the Company to de-nsk the pension scheme, the Trustee
transferred £800 milhion of P&O UK Scheme assets to Paternoster (UK) Ltd, in exchange for a bulk annuty
nsurance policy to ensure that the assets (in the Company balance sheet and in the Scheme) will always be
equal to the current value of the hability of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007, thus removing the funding
nsks for these habilites
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Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund

The MNOPF Scheme Is an industry wide multi-employer defined benefit scheme in which officers employed by
the Company have participated

The scheme was divided into two sections, the Cld Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to new
members The old section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978

The Old Section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978 The Old Scheme completed a buy-out of all its
members benefit obligations in July 2014, following which the Old Section was wound up Therefore, no further
habiliies were assigned to the Company in respect of the Old Scheme The Company could not identify its share
of the underlying assets and hiabilities of the Old Section on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore
accounted for contnbutions and payments to the Old Section under IAS19 as If it were a defined contnbution
scheme untl the scheme was wound up during the year

The most recent formal actuanal valuation of the New Section was carried out as at 31 March 2015 This resulted
In a defict of £2 1 million The Trustee Board believe therr investment strategy will address this defict and
therefore has not 1ssuted deficit contnibution notices to employers in respect of the 2015 actuanal vatuation

Following the valuation the Trustee and Employers have agreed contnbutions, in addition to those ansing from
the 31 March 2003, 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2009 valuations, which will be paid to the Section by
participating employers over the penod to 30 September 2023 These contnibutions include an allowance for the
impact of wrecoverable contnbutions in respect of companies no longer in existence or not able to pay their
share The Company's aggregated outstanding contributions from these valuations are payable as follows 2016
£2 7 million, 2017 to 2020 £5 3 million thousand per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0 8 milhon per annum

The Trustees set the payment terms for each participating employer in accordance with the Trustee's
Contnbution Collection Policy which includes credit vetting

The Company's share of the net deficit of the New Section at 31 December 2015 1s estimated at 5 33%

Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund

The Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (‘the MNRPF Scheme”) is an industry wide multi-employer defined
benefit pension scheme In which sea staff employed by companies within the Company have participated The
scheme has a significant funding deficit and has been closed to further benefit accrual

The most recent formal actuanal valualion was carned out as at 31 March 2014 The Company's deficit
contnbutions ansing from this valuation totalled £25 3 million (equating to 7 3% share of the net deficit) Deficit
contnibutions of £5 0 milion were paid into the Scheme in 2015 Negotiations are ongoing for a repayment penod
for the remaining £13 0 million defict {on which 6% per annum interest will be charged)

The Company, which 1s no longer a current employer in the MNRPF, had settled its statutory debt obtgation and
was not considered to have any legal obligation with respect to the on-going defict in the fund However,
following a legal challenge, by Stena Line Limited, the High Court decided that the Trustees could require all
employers that had ever participated in the scheme to make contnbutions to fund the deficit Although the
Company appealed the decision, it was not overturned
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N Commitments

The commitment dunng the following year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases 1s as follows

£ million

Land and buildings
Lease expinng 2015 2014
Within one year 11 o8
Between one and five years 43 3z
Over five years 54 44
108 84

0. Contingent liabilities

The company has a contingent liability in respect of payment guaraniees amounting to £9 6 milion (2014 £17
million)

P Controlling party
Ultimate holding company

In the opinion of the directors the ultmate controlling parent undertaking as at 31 December 2015 was Port &
Free Zone World FZE, which owns 80 45% of DP World Linuted Port & Free Zone World FZE 1s a wholly
owned subsidiary of Dubal World Corporation, which 1s the ultimate parent company of the Company, but which
does not exert control over the Company

The largest Company of companies for which consolidated financial statements are prepared and in which the
company 1s consolidated 1s DP World Limited DP World Limited 1s the intermediate holding company DP World
Limited has 19 55% of its shares traded on the NASDAQ Dubai  DP World Limited was further admitted to trade
on the London Stock Exchange with effect from 1 June 2011 and voluntarly delisted from the London Stock
Exchange on 21 January 2015

Q. Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP

As stated in note A, these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS 101
The accounting policies set out in note A have been applied in prepanng the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and in the preparation of an cpeming FRS 101 balance sheet at 1 December 2014 In
prepanng its FRS 101 balance sheet, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial
statements prepared in accordance with iis old basis of accounting (UK GAAP) An explanation of how the
transihion from UK GAAP to FRS 101 has affected the Company’s financial position is set out in the following
tables and the notes that accompany the tables
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£ milhon
01-Jan-14 31-Dec-14
Reclassification Effect of Reclassification  Effect of
UK of Inter UK of Inter transttion
GAAP Company :;alr:\;ug on FRS 101 GAAP Company to FRS FRS 101
debtor debtor 101
101
Non-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 17 - - 17 73 - - 73
tnvestments in
subsidianes 2,589 0 (568 8) - 2,020 2 2,1006 (573 2) - 1,627 4
Other investment 238 - - 238 238 - - 238
26145 {568 8) - 2,0457 21317 (573 2} - 1,558 5
Current assets
Trade and other
recewvables 2357 - - 257 257 - . 257
Loans to group
undertakings 18159 568 8§ - 23847 2,943 6 573 2 - 3,516 8
Cash and cash
equivalents 18 B ) 18 35 ) i} 35
1,843 4 568 8 - 24122 29728 5732 - 3,546 0
Creditors amounts
falling due within one
year
Other creditors (7 1) - - (17 1} | (1,086 9) - - (1,086 9)
(17 1) - - (17 1) | (1,086 9) - - (1,086 9)
Net current assets 1,826 3 568 8 - 2,3951 1,8859 5732 - 2,459 1
Total assets less
current habilibes 44408 - - 44408 | 40176 - - 40176
Creditors amounts
falling due 1n more
than one year
Loans (6 2) - - (62} (6 5) - - (6 5}
Other creditors,
including taxation and (406 7) - - {406 7) - - - -
social securnity
(412 9) - - (412 9) {6 5) - - (6 5}
Provisions for labilities (18 8) - - (18 8) (11 0) - - (110)
Net assets before
pension habiiities 4,009 1 - - 40091 | 4,0001 . - 4,0001
Pensions and post-
retirement benefits (98 6) - 279 (707} | (12286) - 273 (953)
Net assets after
pension habilities 39105 - 279 39384 3,877 5 - 273 39048
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital (843 2) - - {843 2) (843 2) - - {843 2)
Share premium
account (815 4) - - (815 4) {815 4) - - (815 4)
Profit and loss account | {2,251 9) - (27 9) (2,2798) | (2,218 9) - {(273) (2,246 2)
Total equity (3,910 5) - (279) (3,9384) 1 (3,877 5) - (27 3) (3,904 8)
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Q. Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP (continued)

Note 1 As of transition date, pension and post-retirement benefits are measured in compliance with FRS 101,
which resulted into decrease in pension habilities by £27 9 milion with a corresponding impact to retained
earnings

Note 2 The transition to FRS 101 resulted in a reducticn of pension hability in comparative penod with a
corresponding impact to increase i administrative costs by £1 6 million, net finance costs by £4 6 million, and
credit to retained earmings by £33 5 million

Note 3 There has been a pnor year adjustment to reclassify a loan to group undertakings of £573 2 million at
31st December 2014 (£568 8 million at 1st January 2014) from long term to short term as the loan is payable on
demand

R. Related undertakings

In accordance with section 409 of the companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of
incorporation and percentage of share capital owned by the Group as at 31 December 2015 1s disclosed below

Name Country of Percentage of share Class of shares
incerporation capital owned by the
Group

Abbott & Goldman United Kingdom 99% Crdinary shares
Abertour Holding Company, Inc Philippines 16% Preferred shares
Anderson Hughes Pty Ltd Australia 94% OCrdinary shares
Antwerp Depot NV Belgium 65% Category A shares
Antwerp Gateway NV Belgium 60% Category N shares and P shares
Ascot SAS France 25% Ordinary shares
Asian Teminals, In¢ Philippines 41 72% Common shares
ATI Batangas, Inc Philippines 41 72% Common shares
ATI Holdings, Inc Philipptnes 100% Common shares
AWH Pty Ltd Austraha 157% Ordinary shares
Basswick Pty Limited Austraha 100% Ordinary shares
Beaufort Insurance Company Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares and Cumulative

Preference shares
Bengal Port Private Limited India 44 50% Ordinary Equity shares
Briish India Steam Nawvigation Company Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
Carpentana Shipping Services Pty Ltd Australia 47 00% Ordinary-A shares
Charlwood Alhiance Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% ordinary shares
Chennai Container Terminal Pvt Lid India 100% Ordinary shares
Community Network Services Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
Container Rall Road Services Pvt Lid Incia 100% Ordinary Equity shares
Daven Holdings, Inc Philippines 16% Preferred shares
DP World (Canada) Inc Canada 100% Ordinary shares
DP World (Fremantle) Limited Australia 315% Class A and class B Ordinary shares
DP World (POSN) B V Netherlands 100% Ordinary-B shares
DP World {SA) Pty Lid Australia 315% Qrdinary shares
DP World Antwerp Contaner Services NV Belgum 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Customs Desk NV Belgium 50% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Holding N V Belgium 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Teminals N V Belgium 100% Ordinary shares
DP World ANZ Ports (Austrahia) Pty Limited Australia 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Austraha (Finance) Pty Ltd Australia 315% Ordinary shares
DP World Australia (Holding) Pty Ltd Australia 315% Crdinary shares
DP World Austraha (Investments) Pty Ltd Australia 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Austraha (POAL} Pty Ltd Austraha 100% Class A, Class 8 and class B Ordinary

shares
DP World Australia (POSN) Pty Ltd Australia 100% Crdinary shares
DP World Australia Limited Australia 315% Ordinary shares
DP World Blue B V Netherlands 100% ordinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

DP World Brnisbane Pty Limited
DP World Canada BV

DP World Germersheim B vV
DP World Investments FZE

DP World Liege NV

DP World Limited

DP World Mapute, SA

DP World Mantime B V

DP World Melbourne Limited

DP World Overseas Pty Limited

DP World Prince Rupert inc

DP World Properties (Australia) Pty Limited
DP World Pvt Ltd

DP World Red BV

DP World Saigon Holdings Limited

DP World Sokhna FZE

DP World Sydney Limited

Eastern Gateway Termnals Prvate Limited
Eurcfos SARL

Eurcpe Atlantique Terminal SA

European Ferrnes Limited

Expert Terminal Services Limited

Fricue Pty Limited

Fritex Pty Limited

Gamac GIE

Generale De Manutention Portuatre

Global Container Services NV

Gnitsen One Limited

Harbourside Holdings Corporation
Havenbedn)f Antverpia NV

Hindustan Ports Private Limited

Jeletrans SAS

taem Chabang International Terminal Co Ltd
Laem Chabang Secunty Service Co Ltd
Laing Investments Inc

Laing Management Company

Leonora tnvestment Company (Central) Limited

Liena Pty Limited

Linfire Limited

London Gateway Limited

London Gateway Park Development Limited
London Gateway Park Limited

London Gateway Park Management Lirmted
London Gateway Port Heldings Limited
London Gateway Port Limited

London Gateway Port Railway Limited
London Gateway Services Limited

Country of
Incorporation

Australia
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Arab
Emirates
Belgium

United Kingdom
Mozambigue
Netherands
Austraha
Australa
Canada
Australia

India
Netherlands
Virgin Islands,
British

United Arab
Emirates
Australia

India

France

France

United Kingdom
Cyprus
Australia
Austraha
France

France

Belgum

United Kingdom
Philippines
Belgium

Incha

France
Thailand
Thailand

United States
United States
United Kingdom
Australia

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
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Percentage of share
capital owned by the

Group

3 15%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
60%
100%
315%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

315%
68 80%
50%
32 49%
100%
50%
100%
100%
50%
50%
100%
100%
16%
98 73%
100%
50%
34 50%
34 50%
50%
50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Class of shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Crdinary shares
Ordinary shares

Class A, Class B and class B Ordinary

shares

Ordinary shares shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary-B shares
Ordinary shares

Class A Ordinary shares

Common shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary Equity shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary Equity shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Qrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Preferred shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Common shares
Common shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name Country of Percentage of share Class of shares

incorporation capital owned by the

Group

Louis Wolfe and Sons (Vancouver) Ltd Canada 100% Class A Common shares
Mackinnon Mackenzie & Co of Pakistan (Private} Palastan 100% Ordinary shares
Limited
Manutention Générate Méditerranéenne SA France 50% Ordinary shares
Manutention Terminal Nord France 50% QOrdinary shares
Matthews Heldings Limited Bermuda 100% Common shares
Morray Holdings, Inc Philippines 16% Preferred shares
Mundra Intemational Container Terminal Private India 100% Ordinary Equity shares
Limited
Navigue — Empresa Mogambicana de Mozambigue 33 95% Ordinary shares
Navegagéo, SARL
Network Financing BV Netherlands 10% Ordinary shares shares
Nhava Sheva (India} Gateway Terminal Private India 100% Ordinary shares
Limited
Nhava Sheva International Container Terminal India 100% Ordinary shares
Pvt Lid
P & O Mantime Services (South Afrnica) South Africa 100% Ordinary shares
(Propnetary} Limited
P&0 Bulk Shipping Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Containers Pakistan (Private) Limited Pakistan 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Delaware Holdings LLC United States 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Dover (Holdings) Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&0O France SA S France 100% Qrdinary shares
P&0O Garden City Investments BV Netherlands 100% Ordinary shares
P&0 Management Services Philippines Inc Philippines 40% Common shares
P&0O Mantme Holdings (Australia) Pty Limited Australia 100% Ordinary shares
P&0O Mantime Holdings Paraguay S A Paraguay 100% Ordinary shares
P&0O Mantime Mozambigue SA Mozambique 094% Ordinary shares
P&O Mantime Ocean Sciences Limited United Kingdom 50% Ordinary-A shares
P&O Maritime Services (France) SARL France 100% Ordinary shares
P&C Mantime Services (Ireland) Lid Ireland 100% Ordinary shares
P&0 Mantime Services (NZ) Limited (being New Zealand 100% Ordinary shares
wound up)
P&O Maritime Services (PNG) Lirmited Papua New 100% Ordinary shares

Guinea
P&O Martime Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd Singapore 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Marittme Services (UK) Linuted United Kingdem 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Marittme Services Paraguay S A Paraguay 90% Ordinary shares
P&O Martime Services Pty Ltd Austraha 100% Qrdinary shares
P&O Netherands B V Netherlands 100% Ordinary shares
P80 Overseas Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&0O Pension Funds Investments Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&0 Ports (Chennai) Ltd Mauntus 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Ports (Kulpi) Pvt Lid Mauntius 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Ports (Mundra) Pvt Lid Mauntius 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Ports Ltd United Kingdom 100% Crdinary shares
P&Q Properties International Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Scottish Fernes Limited United Kingdom 100% QOrdinary shares
P&0O Scottish Fernes Ship Management Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&0O Tankships Investments Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
P&O Trans Australia Holdings Limited Austraha 100% Ordinary shares
Pacity Investments Pty Limited Austraka 100% Ordinary shares
Parktex Development, Inc United States 100% Crdinary shares
Parkway Investments Partners, LP United States 100% Ordinary shares
Parkway Limited Investments, Inc United States 100% Crdinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Partkestrel Limited

Pecard Group Holdings, Inc
Philippine Seapon, Inc

POETS Fleet Management Limited
Portsynergy Projects SA
Portsynergy SAS

Portus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos Portuanos
Limited

POTA Properties Pty Ltd

PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya
PTS Holdings Limited

Qasim International Container Terminal Pakistan
Limited

Qingdao New Chanwan Contaner Temrminal Co,
Ltd

Qingdao Qianwan Container Termunal Co , Ltd
Qingdao Quanwan Intelligent Container Terminal
Co, Ltd

Qingdac Qianwan United Advance Container
Terminal Co , Ltd

CQungdao Qianwan United Container Temunal
Co, Ltd

Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S A

Saigon Premier Container Terminal

Satellite Telemetry (Aust) P/L

SCT Nominees Limited

SCT Pension Trustees Limited

SG Holdings, Inc

Sociedade de Desenvolvimento do Porto de
Maputo, S A

Societe D'Amenagement De L'interface Terrestre
Du Port Du Havre SAS

Sotent Container Services Limited

South Asia Logistics Pvt Ltd

South Asia Ports Limited

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services, Inc
Southampton Container Terminals Limited
Technologicky Park Bmp a s

Terminal de Cabotagem de Maputo SARL
Terminales Riode laPlata S A

UK EDI Lirited

Uninoble S A

Ventress Investments Pty Limited

Vipport

Waughcal Pty Limited

Welbeck Navigation Inc

1-Stop Connections Pty Ltd

Country of
incorporation

United Kingdom
Phiippines
Philippines
United Kingdom
France

France

United Arab
Emurates
Australia
Indonesia
Mauritius

Pakistan
China

China
China

China
China

Spain

Vietnam
Australia

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Philippines
Mozambique

France

United Kingdom
Mauntius
Mauntius
Philtppines
United Kingdom
Czech Republic
Mozambique
Argentina
United Kingdom
Paraguay
Australia
Belgum
Austraiia
Panama
Austraha
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Percentage of share
capital owned by the

Group
100%
16%
39 80%
100%
50%
50%
48 50%

100%
48%
59 22%

55%
23 20%

29%
16 24%

B12%
11 60%

57%
80%
100%
100%
100%
16%
24 74%

17 5%

100%
100%
100%
14 89%
100%
50%
17 31%
55 62%
100%
42 3%
100%
100%
100%
100%
157%

P&O Annual Report

Class of shares

Qrdinary shares
Class B Common shares
Common shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary (Series B) shares

Ordinary shares and redeemable "A"
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Preferred shares
C Class shares

Ordinary shares

Crdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Common shares
A shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
QOrdinary shares
Qrdinary shares
QOrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares




